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D.E. Shaw Composite
International Fund L.P. -
Ordinary Series Restricted
(SOP) Jul 18 Sub

.00

7,215,198.

7,215,198.

00

7,352,426.

7,352,426.

19.

Beach Point Total Return
Offshore Fund I, Ltd. -
Series V - 01 Nov 2007

2,521.

59

1,118.

2,820,546.

96

1,693.

4,270,264.

11.

Davidson Kempner
International (BVI), Ltd. -
Class C Tranche 4 - 01Jan18
(SoP)

28,857

.44

105.

3,032,854.

142.

4,117,298.

10.

Palmerston Credit Feeder
Fund Limited - Class A Series
09/2014

29,110.

18

124.

3,610,057.

127.

3,719,608.

.81

Starboard Value and
Opportunity Fund Ltd. -
Class A Series 1

1,139.

74

2,628.

2,996,128.

91

2,759.

3,145,263.

.29

CQS Directional
Opportunities Feeder Fund
Limited - Class B USD Shares
Non New Issues

432

.46

1,699.

734,989.

80

6,286.

2,718,828.

17

Davidson Kempner
International (BVI), Ltd. -
Class C Tranche 3 Series 1 Jan
2018 UN

13,250.

04

186.

2,470,459.

191.

2,541,146.

.70

BFAM Asian Opportunities
Fund Limited - Class A-U
Serie l

12,103.

60

172.

2,084,208.

180.

2,180,545.

.75

CQS ABS Feeder Fund Limited -
Class B USD Shares

243.

6,864.

1,669,543.

6,892.

1,676,365.

.50
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Class C - Series 8

242.
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.23

11

Palm Lane Credit
Opportunities Fund (Cayman),
Ltd. - SeriesAUSD - Series
04-2018
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.27

12

Third Point UltralLtd. -
Class C - Series 12 NI
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94
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96
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Class D - Series 2

661

.44

1,054.

697,475.

25
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.44

698,770.

79

.84

14
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International (BVI), Ltd. -
Class C Tranche 1 Series 1 Jan
2018 UN

358.

571.

204,710.

06

589.

72

211,144.

23

.56

15

AG Super Fund International
Ltd. - SOP Class XXXX Series 1

.86

1,545.

85

9,058.

1,217.

13
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.02

16

AG Super Fund International
Ltd. - SOP Class XXXX Series 2

.01
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06
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’1 290,572,000.00 32,271 78.79 8,750
- 304,090,009.72 33,772 99.12 11,008
’3 244 ,549,884.22 27,160 98.58 10,948
” 105,144,171.21 11,677 101.25 11,245
- 82,838,978.49 9,200 119.30 13,249
26 75,327,234.72 8,366 133.82 14,862
”7 66,098,117.17 7,341 140.20 15,571
- 56,903,578.21 6,320 134.73 14,963

10
29 47,443,331.86 5,269 141.88 15,757

11
30 38,660,817.38 4,294 144 .57 16,056
29 45,789,169.06 5,085 145.70 16,181
10 44,187,894.49 4,908 146.47 16,267
11 43,955,175.49 4,882 145.61 16,171
12 44,038,262.67 4,891 145.83 16,196
30 43,756,704.30 4,860 147.92 16,428
43,539,288.80 4,835 147.31 16,360
43,041,086.15 4,780 145.60 16,170
38,660,817.38 4,294 144 .57 16,056
38,624,766.29 4,290 144 .62 16,061
38,604,445.68 4,287 14459 16,058
37,795,871.84 4,198 145.08 16,113
37,872,480.10 4,206 145.42 16,150
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113.23 78.79 30.42

78.79 99.12 25.80

99.12 98.58 -0.54

98.58 101.25 2.71

101.25 119.30 17.83

119.30 133.82 12.17

133.82 140.20 4.77

140.20 134.73 3.90

10 134.73 141.88 5.31

11 141.88 14457 1.90
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2007% 2008% 20094 20104 2011%F 2012%F 2013%F 2014%F 2015% 2016% 2017% 20189
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HSBC
310,168.94 1,702,657.10 3,114,985.42
14,091.91 38,272.77 163,783.21
22,025.41 490,166.16 2,646,844 .67
5,324.45 23,195.70 145,911.96
9,178.26 489,428.98 2,166,593.95
() (12,734.60) (133,177.36)
0 1,261,552.69 905,041.26
) (73,809.92) (59,367.44)
0 264,140.63 640,900.63
() (17,241.93) (42,125.51)
20,856.13 134,173.32 527,583.44
) (13,040.27) (29,085.24)
9,391.42 83,731.66 453,243.20
) (6,182.96) (22,902.28)
32,486.50 84,512.15 401,217.55
) (1,646.51) (21,255.77)
10 1,123.10 81,431.56 320,909.09
) (6,013.29) (15,242.48)
" 0 63,815.34 257,093.75
) (8,986.10) (6,256.38)
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2018 30
2018 30 2017 30

38,503 4,276 48,968 5,438
615 68 148 16
4,311 479 20 2
4,926 547 168 19
43,429 4,823 49,136 5,457

(4,768) (530) (1,693) (188)

(4,768) (530) (1,693) (188)
38,661 4,294 47,443 5,269
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2018 30
2018 30 2017 30
1 0 6 1
1,954 217 3,470 385
11 (32) 4) (34) )
(870) ©7) (1,031) (115)
(902) (100) (1,065) (118)
1,053 117 2,411 268
2018 30
2018 30 2017 30
47,443 5,269 56,904 6,320
- - 150 17
(9,835) (1,092) (12,022) (1,335)
(9,835) (1,092) (11,872) (1,319)
1,053 117 2,411 268
38,661 4,294 47,443 5,269
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FRS 102
FRS 102
2018 30 2017 30
4,697 5,068
(1.023) (1,903)
(1,873) 448

284 145
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(115) (274)

(16) 14)

1,954 3,470

12
2018 30 2017 30

(735) (846)

(53)

(735) (899)

(45) (51)

an (16)

(73) (65)

(90) (81)

(870) (1,031)

2007 HSBC
HSBC
1.65
735,316 2017 845,903
2017
HSBC HSBC
12
10 2017

52,930 2017 52,930
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HSBC C.l. HSBC
0.10
44,565 2017 51,267
2017

2018 30 2017 30
573 -
12 —* 3
42 145
615 148

* 500

2018 30 2017 30

4,311 20
HSBC HSBC
2018 30 A 2017 30 A HSBC
2018 30 A2 2017
30 Al
2018 30 2017 30
12 (13)
11 (4,753) (1,636)
(53)
(@) “4)
(4,768) (1,693)
HSBC 1989
1,200

2017 1,200
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320,909.09 13,370.55 334,279.64
(63,815.34) (3,896.55) (67,711.89)
257,093.75 9,474.00 266,567.75
401,217.55 19,755.34 420,972.89
1,123.10 - 1,123.10
(81,431.56) (6,384.79) (87,816.35)
320,909.09 13,370.55 334,279.64
37,166 1,495 38,661
45,529 1,914 47,443
54,055 2,849 56,904
C.1I.
HSBC
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4,753,000
3.45

12

2018

2018

2018

2017

2017

2017

31

31

31

31

HSBC

30

30

3.5724

2017

HSBC

1,265,718

28,814

HSBC

1,724,138

18,331

12.29
32,431
2.2300

1,547,973

23,622

1,881,370

20,017
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2017 1,636,000
2017 33,626

(12,833)

163

163
(12,833)

(12,670)

2,944
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2018 30 2017 30
VaR 99% (5.86)% (6.07)%
4,753,000 2017 1,636,000
3.5724 2017 2.2300
4,311,339 2017 19,627
2018 4 30

2018 30
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2017 30
. 1,904 1,904
2018 30 A 2017 A
HSBC HSBC
HSBC
2018 31 A2 2017 31 Al
2017
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Investment

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 2 - Special
Investment

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 - Special
2017 30

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 - Special
Investment

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 2 - Special
Investment

FRS 102

FRS 102
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2018 30

1 2 3
- 38,487 16 38,503
- 38,487 16 38,503
1 2 3
- (13) - (13)
- (13) - (13)

2017 30
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1 2 3
- 48,950 18 48,968
- 3 - 3
- 48,953 18 48,971
FRS 102
2017 30
2018 30 2017 30
3 3
18 18
@ -
16 18
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487
2017 534
11
14.
13
11
10

15

16

2018 30 2017 30
0.8261 0.9162
17
2018 30 2017 30

18
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HSBC

2018 4 30

(2017 : 103.21%)
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class
XXXX Series 1 -
Special Investment 6 9 0.02
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class
XXXX Series 2 -

Special Investment 5 7 0.02
Beach Point Total Return Offshore Fund Il -

IS Series V 01 Nov 2007 GSY 2,522 4,202 10.87
BFAM Asian Opportunities Fund Ltd. - Class

A-U

Series 1 NI GSY 12,104 2,173 5.62
CQS Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund

Ltd. -

Class B USD Shares Non New Issues 432 2,683 6.94
D.E. Shaw Composite International Fund -

April 1st Subscription 1 7,577 19.60
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. -

Class C Tranche 1 Series 1 Jan 18 - GSY 358 208 0.54
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. -

Class C Tranche 3 Series 1 Jan 18 - GSY 13,250 2,507 6.48
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. -

Class C Tranche 4 Series 1 Jan 16 - GSY 28,857 4,064 10.51
Palm Lane Credit Opportunities Fund Ltd. -

Series A USD - Series 04-2018 2,500 2,510 6.49
Palmerston Credit Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class A

Series 09/2014 29,110 3,669 9.49
Starboard Value and Opportunity Fund Ltd. -

Class A Series 1 1,140 3,017 7.80
Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class C - Series 12

NI - GSY 556 807 2.09
Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class C NI Series 8
- GSY 243 1,591 4.12
Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class D - Series 2 1,416 1,485 3.84
Tyrus Capital Event Fund Ltd. - Class A USD
- GSY 15,262 1,994 5.16

38,503 99.59

(2017 :-103.21%) 38,503 99.59
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2018 30 2017 30
144 57 141.88
130.38 131.15
2018 30 2017 30
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
2018 30 2017 30
40.40% 54 .55%
32.10% 24.75%
26.80% 14_73%
- 5.97%
0.70% -
100.00% 100.00%
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2018 4 30

***k
Palmerston Credit Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class A Series 09/2014 29,110 3,600
Starboard Value and Opportunity Fund Ltd. - Class A Series 1 1,140 2,850
Palm Lane Credit Opportunities Fund Ltd. - Series A USD -
Series 04-2018 2,500 2,500
BFAM Asian Opportunities Fund Ltd. - Class A-U Series 1 NI
GSY 12,104 2,149
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche
3 Series 1 Jan 18 — GSY 15,780 1,999
Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class D - Series 2 1,416 1,074
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche
1 Series 1 Jan 18 — GSY 358 143

**%k
East Lodge Capital Credit Opportunities Fund - Class B 3,000 3,368
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche
3 Series 1 Jan 16 — GSY 22,610 3,274
ENA Opportunity Offshore Fund Ltd. - Class C Shares
Restricted Series 1 Jan 2016 3,000 3,064
JHL Capital Group Fund Ltd. - Class C 3,500 3,001
Starboard Value and Opportunity Fund Ltd. - Class A Series
92 1,140 2,850
Black Diamond Thematic Ltd. - Series A 30,000 2,476
D.E. Shaw Composite International Fund - April 1st
Subscription 0.21 2,151
Tyrus Capital Event Fund Ltd. - Class A USD - GSY 12,023 1,816
ENA Opportunity Offshore Fund Ltd. - Class C Shares
Restricted Series 1 Dec 2015 1,125 1,148
Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class D - Series 22 1,074 1,074
CQS Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class B USD
Shares Non New Issues 127 750
Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class C NI Series 8 GSY 80 499
Highland Crusader 11 Fund 1 491
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche
3 Series 1 Jan 18 — GSY 2,530 477
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche
1 Series 1 Jan 16 — GSY 358 143
Bluebay VRF EUR - Class S GSY 1 1

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1
Special Investment 0.15 *x_
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AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 2
Special Investment 0.13 *k_

20

** 500

*** 2018 30
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018

Motes  LISS'000

Income
Met capital gains

Interest expense
QOperating expenzes

MNet expenses

Change in net assels attributable to the unitholders of
the Fund from investment activities

m

4

(B70)

Year Ended Year Ended
30 April 2018 30 Apnl 2017
Us5000 Uss'000 US5000
1 [
1,854 3470
(32) (34)
{1,031)
{902) {1,085}
1,053

2411

All resuits are derived from continuing operations. The Fund has no items of other comprehensive income and mrnm
the change in net atiributable to the uniholders of the Fund frem investment activities reflects the total eomprehansive

income for the paniod,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF THE

FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018

Met assets attributable to the unitholders of the Fund
at the start of the year

Movement due to issue and redemption of
redeemable participating units

Amounts recevedirecevable on issues
Less: Amounts padpayable on redemptions

Change in net asssts attributable to the unitholders
of the Fund from investmeant activities

Met assets attributable 1o the unitholders of tha Fund
at the end of the year

Year Endad Year Ended
30 April 2018 30 April 2017
USS'000 USS'000 USS000 US5'000
47 443 56,504
= 180
{9,835) (12,022
(9.835) (11,872)
1,053 2411
33651 47 443

The notes on pages 15 to 28 form an integral part of these consalidated financial stalemenis

"
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET STATEMENT AS AT 30 APRIL 2018

Az at
30 April 2018

Assels Motes JIS5000 US5000
Current Assets
Portfolio of investments 13 38,503
Debtors B 615
Cash and cash equivalents 7 4,311

4,926
Total assels 43425
Liabilities
Craditors: amounts falling due
within one year 8 4.768
Total Liahilines 4 TEE
MNet assets attributable to the
unitholders of the Fund 38,661

EDINETOOOO
O00OO00O00O00000000o0noonoOonod(esL8s)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

As at
30 Apnil 2017
USS'000 USs'000

48,968

148

20
168
49,138

(1,683}

1,683

47 443

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Manager, HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited, on 28

August 2018 and were signed on its behaif by:

»L_UJ\

Director
For and on behalf of Hsgt‘mgnagemam
(Guernsey) Limited

C= M
Diractor

For and on behalf of HSBC Managemaen!
(Guermsey) Limited

The noles on pages 15 to 28 form an integral par of these consolidated financial statements,
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HSBC SPECIAL OFPPORTUNITIES FUND

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 STRUCTURE OF THE FUND

HSEC Special Oppedunities Fund (the *Trust’) is a sub-fund of HSBC Alernative Strategy Fund, an open ended
Guarnsey unit trus! scheme established as an umbrella fund which is authorised as a Class B Schermne under The
Authorised Collective Investmant Schames (Class B) Rutes, 2013,

The registered office of the Manager of tha Trust is Arnold House, St Julian's Avenue, St Peter Part, Guernsay GY1
3NF, Channel Isiands.

The Trust owns 100% of the units in HSBC Special Opporunities Investmants Limited {the “Company™), a BVI
registered company. The Trust alsa loans monies to the Company to fund its investing activities.

The Company owns the investments listed in the Portfolio of Investments. The purpose of the Company is to ensure
that any withholding tax on distributions fram such investments may be reclaimed.

These consolidated financial statements include all the assets and liabilities of the Trust and the Company (together
the *Fund).

The Trus! registered as an Allernative Investiment Fund ("AIF") with effect from 1 July 2014, with the Financial
Conduct Authority and the Commission de Surveiliance du Sector Financier, As a non-EEA AIF with 3 non-EEA
AIFM the Trust is not authorised or regulated under AIFMD and consequently is not required to have a depositary

Statement of compiiance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland ("FRS 102°) and the Statement of Recommended Practice
far Authorised Funds (the “SORF") issued by the Investment Management Association in May 2014 and effective
for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2015.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The fallowing accounting policies have been applisd consistently in dealing with fems which are considered
material in relation to these consolidated financial statemants:

Basis of praparation

These consohdated financial stalements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the recognition and measurement of certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value.

Going Concern

At the date of signing, the Directors have no reason to balieve that the Fund should not be seen as a going concem
and hence the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,

LUise of estimates and judgemants

The preparation of consolidated financial statements In accordance with the recognition and measurement
principles of FRS 102 requires management to make judgements, estimales and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilties and disclosure of conlingent assets and
liakilities at the date of the conschidated financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses
during the yvear

The estimates and associaled assumptions are based on historical experience and various ather factors that are
befieved to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form tha basis for making the judgements

about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from oiher sources. Actual results could
differ from those estimates

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complaxity, or areas wherne assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed within the Fair Value of Investments accounting policy and Nate
13

13
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Bagis of consclidation
The consolidated financial statements include the results of the Trust and its wholly-owned subsidiary HSBC
Spacial Opportunities Investments Limited. The Manager does not consider tha unconsolidated balance sheet of

the Trust to be a material aclivity as the only reason for setting up the subsidiary company was for fiscal purposes.
Aceardingly no unconsolidated balance sheat [s presented in these consolidated financial statements

Functional and presentational currency

The functional and presentational curmency is US Dollar ("USS") because that is the currency of the primary
economic emvirenment in which the Fund operates.

Detarmination of funclional currency

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Fund operates. When
indicators of primary economic environment are mixed, management uses its judgement to determine the functional
currency that most faithfully represents the economic effect of the underlying transactions, events and conditicns.
The management has determined thal the functional currency of the Fund iz US Dollar. Investor subscriplions and
redemptions are received and paid in the cumrency of the relevant share class

Einancial insirumants
The Fund has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.

i} Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including debtors and cash and cash equivalents, are initially recognised al transaction price,
unless the arrangement constitules a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured al the present vatue
of the future receipts discounted at 3 market rale of interest. Such assels are subsequently caried al amortised
cost using the effective interest method

Al the end of each reporting period financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for objective
avidence of impairment. If an asset is impaired the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the assel's original effective interest rate. The
impaimmant loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of tolal return

Other financial assets, including investments in investment funds and derivative contracts, are initially measured at
fair valug, which is normally the transaction price. Such assels are subsequently carried at fair value and the
changes in fair value are recognised In the consalidated statemeant of total return.

Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are
seftled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred to ancther party or
{c) control of the asset has been transfemed to another party who has the practical ability to unilaterally sell the
asset to an unralated third party without imposing additional restrictions.

i) Financial llabilities

Basic financial liabilties, including creditors and loan obligations are initially recognised at transaction price, unless
tha arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument s measured at the present value of
the fulure receipts discounted at @ market rate of interest.

Creditors and loan obligations are classified as debt instruments and are subsequently carmied at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method

Financial labilties are derecognised when the liability ks estinguished, that is when the contractual cbligation is
discharged. cancelled or expires

14
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H3BC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instryments (continued)

iit} Fair value of investments

Invastments in investment funds are valued at the net assel value per unit for the underlying investments that the
Fund holds, as at Spm (Guermsey time) on the consolidated balance sheet date. Investments in underlying funds
which are not quoted on a recognised stock exchange or other trading facility are valued at the net assat values
provided by their fund managers or their administrators. These values may be unaudited or may themselves be
estimates. In addition, their fund managers or their administrators may notl provide values at all or in a timaly
manner and, to the extent that values are not avaitable, those investments will be valued by the Invastment Adviser
using valuation technigues appropriate 1o those investments. In determining fair value, the Investment Adviser takes
into consideration, where applicable, the impact of suspension of redemptions, liquidation proceedings, investmants
in side pockets and other significant factors. The Direclors of the Manager have no reason to believe that the
valuations used are unreascnable,

Realised and unrealised gains and losses on investments are included in the consolidated statement of total return
within net capital gain. Realised and unrealised gains and losses on sales of invesiments are determined using the
average cost method. Purchases and sales of investments are accounted for on a trade date plus one basis.

iv) Forward foreign exchange contracts

The unrealised appreciation or depreciation on open forward foreign exchange contracts is calculaled by reference
to the difference between the contracied rate and the rate to close out the contract. Unrealised appreciation is
reported as an asset and unrealised depreciation is reported as a liability in the consolidated balance sheet. All net
gains of losses on forward foreign exchange contracts are recorded in the consolidated statement of total return

Bevenus

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method. Dividend income is recognised when the right
to receive payment is established. All other sources of revenue are recognised on an accruals basis. Revenue is
included in the consolidated statement of tetal return. All non-class specific income is aliocated 1o each unit class in
propartion to the total net assets of the unit class during the vear. All class specific income is allocated to the unit
class 1o which it relates.

Expenses

Expenses are included in the consolidated statement of total return on an accruals basis. All non-class specific
expenses are allocated lo each unit class in proportion to the tolal net assets of the unit class during the year. All
class specific expenses are allocated to the unit elass to which they relate

Interest expense

Interest expense anises from credit facilities held by the Fund. These costs are recognised in the consolidated
statement of total return and are calculated using the effective interest rate method.

Eoreian curmency transactions

Foreign currency Iransactions are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the dale of the transaction, Monetary
assets and ligbilites denominated in forgign currencies are transtated to US Dollars at the foreign currency closing
exchange rate ruling at the consolidated balance sheet date. The Fund repers the realised exchangs gain or loss
as well as the unrealised exchange appreciation or depreciation on non-US Dollar denominated investments in the
consclidated statement of total return. Any realised axchange gains or losses as well as unrealised appreciation or
depreciation arising from nen-US Dollar denominated payables and receivables and on foreign curaency
transactions are refiected in the consolidated statement of total return

15
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUMNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other shor-term highly liquid
invesimants with eriginal maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts, when applicable,

are shown as loans payables in current liabilities
Cash Flow Statement

Under FRS 102 the Fund is exempt from the requirement to prepare a cash flow stalement as it complies with the

conditions for open-ended investment funds.
Wnitg in |

Redeemable paricipating units are redeemable at the option of the unitholders of the Fund and are classified as

financial habilitias,
Transaction Costs

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a
financial asset or financial liabifity measured at fair value through profit or less. Transaction costs are recognised

within the statement of total return when incurred

New Standards and Amendments

There are curmantly no fulure amendments to FRS102 issued that would have a significant impact on the Fund.
3 NET CAPITAL GAINS

Year Ended Year Ended

30 April 2018 30 April 2017

USS'000 US$'000

Realised gains on non-derivative investmants 4,897 5,088
Realised losses on non-darivative investmenis (1.023) 11,903)
Met unrealised (losses)/gains on non-derivative investmenis {1,873) 448
Realised gains on derivative investiments 284 145
Realised losses on derivative investmenls {115) {274)
Met unrealised losses on dervalive invesiments (16) {14}
Total net capital gains 1,954 3470

Derivative investments held by the Fund are forward foreign exchange contracts as detailed in Mate 12,

15
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HSBC SPECIAL OPFPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
4 OPERATING EXPENSES

Year Ended Year Ended
30 April 2018 30 April 2017
LUS5'000 USS'000
Payabile to the Manager and iis associates:
Management feas (735) (B46)
Performance fees - {53)
{735) {809)
Payabia lo the Trustee and its associales
Trustes fees {45) {51)
Other expenses:
Audit feas {17) {18)
Other sundry expenses {73) {B5)
{90) {E1)
Total axpanses (8700 £1,031)

5 MANAGEMENT, TRUSTEE AND INVESTMENT ADVISER AGREEMENTS

Under the terms of a trust deed dated & February 2007, as amended from time to time (the “Trust Deed”), HSBC
Management (Guernsaey) Limited is the Manager of the HSBC Alternative Strateqy Fund, which includes the Fund
In accordance with the Prospectus the Manager is entitied to receive a fee of 1.65% of the net assel value per
annum for tha US Dollar Class and the Euro Class. The Management fea for the year amounted ta USS735318
{2017; US$845,903). There was no managemen! fee oulstanding at the year-end (2017: USSMil).

Under the terms of the Trust Deed. the Manager appointed HSBC Alternative Investments Limiled as the
Investment Adviser of the HSEC Alternative Strategy Fund. In accordance with the Prospectus the Manager is
entitlied to receive a performance fee if the percentage increase in the net asset value per units at the relevant
valuation point compared with the net asset value per units at the start of the current performance period exceads
the calculated refurn on the relevani index (ihe “Index Return™) and the net asset value per units at the star of the
performance period is not less than the net assel value per units at the end of any previous performance penod
The Index Return is calculsted as the percentage imcrease of an impufed investment in the index over the
performance period, including appropriate compounding effects where applicable, with the index baing updated in
lime with prevailing market interest rates as at the last valuation peint in March, June, September and Decembar
The performance fee will be 109 of new “excess” value over the Index of the applicable Unit class. There was no

parformance fee charged during the year (2017; USS52,230). There was no perdormance fee oulstanding at the
year-end (2017 US552 930).

Under the terms of the Trust Deed, HSBC Private Bank (C.1) Limited is the Trustee of the HSBC Alernative
“Strategy Fund. In accordance with-the Prospectus the Trustee receives a fee of 0.10% of the net asset value per
annum. The frusiee fee for the year amounted to USS44 565 (2017 USS51.267), There was no trustes fee
outstanding at the year-end (2017 LSS,

& DEBTORS As at As at

30 April 2018 30 Apnl 2017

USS'000 uss'000

Receivable for investments sold 573 -
Unrealised gains on forward foreign exchange contracts

(see Note 12) a* a

Prepaid expense 42 145

815 148

o Markei value & shown as the market value i less than USS500

T CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS As at As at
30 April 2018 30 Agril 2017

US5000 USS000

Cash and bank balances 4,311 20

17
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

7 CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

Cash balances are held by State Street Custodial Senvices (Ireland) Limited (the “Sub-Custedian®) and HSBC Bank
plc. Guernsay Branch which is ultimately owned by HSBC Holdings ple. The Fund's cash is maintained within the
Sub-Custodian's sub-custodial network in segregated accounts. The credit rating of State Streel Corporalion, the
parent company of the Sub-Custodian, at 30 April 2018 was A (30 April 2017: A) as rated by S8P's Ratings Agancy.
The credit rating of HSBC Holdings plc at 30 April 2018 was A2 (30 April 2017: A1) as rated by Moody's Ratings

8 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR Asal Az at
30 April 2018 30 April 2017
USS'000 UES'000

Unrealised losses on forward foreign exchange contracts
{sea Note 12) {13) .
Loans payable (see Mote 11) {4,753 1,638)
Accrued performance fees - (53)
Other creditors (2} (4)
{4,768) (1,683)

8 TAXATION STATUS
The umbralla fund, HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund, is exempt from Guemsey income tax under the Income Tax
{Exempt Bodies) (Guemnsey) Ordinances 1989 and is charged an annual exemption fee of GBP1,200 (2017;
GBP1,200).

10 REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS IN ISSUE

Total

US Dollar Euro Mumber of

Class Class units in issue

Redeemable Participating units in issue at 1 May 2017 32090909 1337055 334,279,684
Issued on Subscnptions - - -
Redemptions (B3,815.34)  (3.896.55) (67.711.89)
Redeamable Participating units in issue at 30 April 2018 257,083.75 9.474.00 266 56775
Tatal

US Dollar Eurg Mumber of

Class Class units in issue

Redesmable Farticipating units in issue at 1 May 2018 401,217,585 19,755.34 42097289
lssued on Subscriptions 1,123.10 - 1.123.10
Redemptions {B1,431.56)  (5.384.79) (87,816.35)
Redeemable Partictpating units in issue at 30 April 2017 320,809.08 13,370.55 334 237064

The Fund's net asset values per unit are disclosed on page 30,
All series of units rank equally for allocation of income and expenses and have the same righis attached 1o them

The Manager may limit the number of units in the Trust which may be redeamed on any dealing day to not more
than 15% of the total number of units in issue immediately bafore such dale. Any redemption of units during the first
12 calendar months from the dale of subscriplion shall be subject to a redemption fee payable to the Fund and
equal to 5% of redemption proceeds. Thereafter the redemption fee shall be 0%. A maximum initial charge of up to
3% of subscrption monies may be charged on all classes at the Manager's discretion,

Us Dallar Euro
Class Class Tolal
US5'000 USS000 Us5000
Net Assets gt 30 Apnl 2018 37,166 1,495 38 661
Met Assets at 30 Apnl 2017 45 529 1.914 47 443
Met Assets at 30 Apnl 2016 54,055 2,849 56 904

18
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
HEBC Private Bank (C.1) Limited acts as Trustes to the Fund.

The Fund also placed money on deposit with HSBC Bank plc. Guernsey Branch on a regular basis throughout the
year. The interest rate received is consistent with that received on a normal commercial deposit

HSBC Alternative Investments Limited (the ‘Investment Adviser’) is wholly owned by parties that are affiliated with
the Manager and the Trustee

Loan

The Fund has the ability to borrow up 1o 25% of its net assel value for a period of up to one month to cover a cash
shortfall taused by mismatched seftlemnent dates on purchase and sale transactions of investment funds; and for a
pericd of up to three months to fund redemptions; and for investment purposes, subject to a maximum of 10% of the
Fund's net asset value, to facilitate addiional investment in investment funds. There were no breaches of these
bomowing restrictions by the Fund during the year.

HSBC Bank ple, Guernsey Branch provided credit facilities to the Fund during the year. At the year end the loan
outstanding was LISS4 753,000 or 12 208 of the Fund's net asset value (2017; USS1,636,000 or 3.45% of net asset
value). The interest paid during the year was USS$32,431 (2017: USS$33,626). The interest rate prevailing at the
consolidated balance sheet dale is 3 5724% (2017: 2.2300%). The loan is secured and repayable on demand and
there were no breaches of borrowing restrictions by the Fund during the year.

There were no olher related party transactions for the year other than fees paid to the Manager, Trustee and
Investment Adviser as outlined in Note 5.

12 FORWARD FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

Assels may be denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of each unit class and certain currency
exposure will be hedged back to the relevant unit class currency. Hedging for this purpose may be by means of
forward foreign exchange contracts or oplions on such coniracts or by using such other derivative instruments as
may be available and having the same or similar effect. The Fund shall not invest in derivative instruments for
speculative purposes. The Investment Adviser retains the right to vary the palicy on currency hedging at its absolute
discretion. All costs of such hedging will be met by the Unitholders of the relevant unit class only.

The fellowing forward foreign exchange contracts were outstanding at 30 April 2018 in respect of the hedging of
the HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - Euro Class.

Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Gainl/{Loss)

uss

31-May-18 EUR1,265,718 US51,547 873 State Street Bank (12.833)
31-May-18 Us528.814 EUR23622 State Sireet Bank 163
Unrealised gain on lorward foreign exchange confracts 163
Unrealised loss on forward foreign exchange contracts 12.833)
Net unrealised loss on forward foreign exchange contracts 12,670)

The following forward foreign exchange contracts were outstanding at 30 April 2017 in respect of the hedging of
the HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - Euro Class.

Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Gain
uss
31-May-17 EUR1, 724,138 US51,881,370 Siate Strest Bank 2,944
31-May-17 EUR18,331 Uss20047 State Street Bank 17
Met unrealised gain an forward foreign exchange contracts 2,981
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Market Risk Oversight

The Manager lakes a multi-iered approach to risk management, with the understanding and management of risk
embedded in the manager selection and portfolio management processes, logether with portfolio oversight and
monitoring in accordance with Fund investment restrictions, as listed in the relevant Fund section in the Prospectus.

In manager selection, due diligence revelves around understanding whether the risks a hedge fund manager takes
in the pursuil of returns are appropriate and controlled. Complementing this investment focused due diligance, is a
separate operational due diligence process, which evaluaies the business and operational (non-investment) risks of
a hedge fund and seeks to avoid hedge funds where inadequate structure or process could compromise an
investment.

In portfolioc management, ensuring that portfolios are appropriately diversified is paramount. In order to assess risk
and portfolio diversification, both qualitative and quantitative techniques are used, including returns and exposure-
based analysis.

The Manager regularly monitors each Fund's compliance on a monthly basis with the investment restrictions
detailed in tha Prospactus, and retains oversight of all aspects of the sk management process

The main risks arising from the Fund’s financial instruments are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
Market risk

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainly about fulure prices of financial instruments held. It represenis the
potential loss the Fund might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements. The
Investment Adviser considers the asset allocation of the portfolio in order to minimise the risk associated with
particular countries or industry sectors whilst continuing to foliow the Fund's investment objective.

Market risk embodies the potential for both gains and losses and includes currency risk, interest rate risk and price
risk. The profitability of the Fund's investment programme depends (0 3 great extent on correct assessments of the
future course of price movernents of securities and equities and other invesiments. There can be no assurance that
the Manager will be able to accurately predict these price movemenis. The securities markels have in recent years
been characterised by greal volatility and unpredictability. \With respect to the investment strategy into which the
Investrment Adviser has invested the Fund's assels, there is always some, and from Gime o lime a significant,
degree of markel risk.

Details of the Fund's investment porifolio at the consolidated balance sheet date are disclosed in the Portfolio of
Investments included on page 29.

The Fund, generally seeks to inftiate, increase, reduce or exit positions based on the use of a number of risk
analysis techniques, including but not limited to sensitivity and simulation analysis and value at risk ("VaR")
measurements, which use statistical analysis of historical and implied volalilities and movements 1o delermine
confidence levels of the historical maximum potential loss incurred for each position over a determinad tima horizon.
There can be no assurance thal losses will not ocour and past performance is not indicative of fulure results.

The VaR calcuiation is a monte carlo simulation of each of the underlying holdings of the portfolio, which are then
aggregated lo produce returns for one thousand simulated portfalios. The returns are simulated as the proportional
increments of constanl drift, constant volatity stochastic processes, thereby approximaling continuous-time
geomelric Brownian mation

The data balow indicates the VaR of tha Fund's financial instruments, measured as the potential 1 day loss in value
from adverse changes in fund prices, interes! rates and foreign exchange rates using a 89% confidence level

30 April 30 April
2018 2017
Crverall Market VaR (99%) (5.85)% (5.07)%
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HSBC SPECIAL OFPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Market risk (continued)

{a) Other price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the investments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (ofher
than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factors specific 1o an individual
investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all investments traded in the marked

The Fund is required to comply with the standard investment and borrowing restrictions as defined in tha
Prospectus. The Fund's investment restrictions are manitored on 8 regular basis by the Trustee of the Fund and
reviewed on a monihly basis by the Manager. There are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting
breaches, and situations where holdings coma close to restriction levels,

(b} Interest rate risk

The majority of the Fund's financial assets are investments in investment funds which neithar pay interest nor have
a maturity date. The underlying funds the Fund invests in are exposed to interest rate rigk; however, the Fund
midigates this risk by diversifying its invesiments.

The Fund has borowed US54, 753,000 at the year end (2017: US$1,636,000) The interest rate prevailing al the
consolidated balance sheet date is 3.5724% (2017: 2.2300%)

The Fund is exposed to variable interest rates on cash and bank balances of LISS4,311,339 (2017: USS19.827),

(c) Foreign currency risk

The Fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in currencies other than its
functional currency. Consequently the Fund may be exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its curmency relative
lo other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse sffest on the vatue of that portion of the
Fund's assels or liabilities denominated in currencies other than US Dollars, For the year ended 30 Aprl 2018
exposure was Nil.

The Funds currency risk is managed on a monthly basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with policies and
procedures in place. All currency expasure at the portfolio level is hedged into the currency of the relevant unit class
©n a monthly basis, using standard monthly forwards. The Fund's averall currency posifions and exposures are
manitered an & monthly basis by the Manager

The Fund also offers redesmabie participaling units denominated in Euro axpesing the unitholders to foreign
currency risk. This nsk is mitigated on behalf of the unithalders by the Fund entering Into forward foreign exchange
contracts as described further in this note

The following table sets out the Fund's total exposure to foreign cumrency risk and the net exposure to the foreign
currencies at 30 April 2018,

Mummq..r Agsels
Currency and Liabtlities Total Forward FX Mat

LISS'000 USS'000 US5000
Euro - 1,506 1,506
The foliowing table sets out the Fund's total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to the foreign
currencies at 30 April 2017

Monetary Assets
Currency and Liabilities Total Forward FX Met
LIS5'000 Uss'o00 USE000
Eurg - 1,904 1,904
21
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty 1o a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment
that it has entered into with the Fund.

The Fund mamdmnmdﬂrhkmpmieswimmnmﬂtmdasandmhmmtm risk of sattierment dafault.

Substantially, all of the assets of the Fund are held by State Sireet Custodial Services (lreland) Limited (the “Sub-
Custodian™). Banknsptcy or insolvency of the Sub-Custodian may causa the Fund's rights with respect o securities
held by the Sub-Custodian to be delayed or limited. The Manager monitors its risk by monitoring the credit quality
and financial positions of the Sub-Custodian the Fund uses. The credit rating of State Street Corpaoration, the parent
company of the Sub-Custodian at 30 April 2018 was A (30 Apsil 2017; A) as rated by S&P's Ratings Agency.

HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch which is ullimately owned by HSBC Holdings ple, provided eredil facilities to the
Fund during the year. The credit rating of HSBC Holdings plc at 31 March 2018 was A2 (31 March 2017 Al) as
rated by Moody's Ratings Agency

In addition, the Fund has indirect exposure to credit risk through the credil risk held by the underlying fund
investments

The Fund minimises concentrations of credit risk by underaking transactions with a large number of counterparties
As at the financial year end, none of the financial assets of the Fund are past dua or are impaired (2017 none)

Liguidity risk

The main liabilities of the Fund are the redemption of any units that investors wish to redeem and the loan
repayable to HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch. The risk is that the Fund might not be able to liquidale investment
positions in order to repay amounis demanded by its Unithobders: or its kender.

The Fund's liquidity risk is managed on an cngoing basis by the Investment Adviser in accondance with policies and
procedures in place. It is not the normal policy of the Fund to invest directly in funds, limited partnarships or other
vehicles that have no liquidity. The Fund's overall iquidity risks are monitored on a monthly basis by the Manager.

The Eund's investment restrictions, as defined in the Prospectus, some of which perain to the managemeant of
liguidity risk and cancentrations thereof are monitored on a continuous basis by the Trustee of the Fund. There ara
specific guidelines in place for monitonng and reporting breaches. and situations where holdings come close o
restriction levels.

Tha Manager may limit the number of Units in the Fund which may be redeamed on any Dealing Day (o not more
than 15% of the total number of Units in issue immediately before such dale. Any Units failing to be redeemed upon
the exercise of this discretion by the Manager will be carried farward to the next Dealing Day and shall be redeemed
pro rata in pririty to any other Units in respect of which a Redemption Notice has subsequently been received

All of the Funds liabilities ase payabie within one year and the loan is repayable on demand

2
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H3BC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk {continued)

Al the 30 April 2018, the following investes funds had a redemption period of greater than 90 days in place to
redeem its investment holdings

Market Value at

30 April 2018

LISS'000

AG Super Fund International Ltd - Class XXX Series 1 - Special Invesiment o
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 2 - Special Invesimant 7

18

At the 30 Agril 2017 tha following investee funds had a redemption period of greater than 90 days in place to
redeem its investment holdings

Market Value at
30 April 2017
USE'000

AG Super Fund International Lid - Class XXXX Series 1 - Special Investment 10
AG Super Fund International Lid, - Class XXXX Series 2 - Special Investment ]
18

Fair value hierarchy

FRS 102 requires disclosure relating to the fair valus hierarchy in which fair value measurements are categorisad
for assets and Eabilities. The disclosures are based on a three-level fair value hierarchy for the inputs used in
valuation tachniques to measure fair value

The fair value hierarchy as required under FRS 102 is based on the valuation inputs used to fair value the financial
assets and liabilities and consideration of the market activity for each individual financial asset and lability. The
definitions for Levels 1, 2 and 3 are set out below.

Level 1. The unadjusted quoted price in an active market for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date

Level 2. Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable (ie developed using market
data) for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 Inputs are unobservable (i.e. for which market data is unavailable) for the assat or liability,

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement was calegorised in fts entirety was
detarmined on the basis of the lowest leve! input that was significant to the fair value measurement in is enlirety
Far this purpose. the significance of an input was assessed against the fair value measurement in its entiraty,

If & fair value measurement used observable inputs that required significant adjustmeant based on unobservable
inputs, that measurement was a Lavel 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair
value measurement in #s entirety required judgement, considering factars specific to the asset or liabilty, The
determination of what constituted “observable® required significant judgement by the Investment Adviser.

The Investment Adviser considered observable data 1o be market dala that was readily available, regularly
distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary. and provided by independent sources that are activaly
involved in the relevant market,

23
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
{a) Hierarchy analysis

The following tables provide an analysis of the fair value hierarchy of the Fund's financial assets, measured at fair
value at 30 April 2018:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels us§'000 USS'000 Uss'000 uss'o00
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:
Investment funds - 38.487 16 38,503
Total Assats - 38,487 18 38,503

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Liabilities Uss'000 UsS$E 000 uss'000 Us$'000
Financial liabilities a1 fair value through
profit or loss:
Forward fareign exchange contracts - {13} - {13)
Total Liabilities - (13} g (13)

The following table provides an analysis of the fair value hierarchy of the Fund's financial assets, measured at fair
value at 30 April 2017

Lovel 1 Leval 2 Level 3 Total
Asseats UsS5'000 UsS5'000 US5'000 USS'000
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:
Investment funds ! 48,950 18 48 968
Forward foreign exchange coniracts - 3 - 3
Total Assets - 48053 18 48971

The level in the hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety is determined based
an the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

Transfers between levels are recorded as if the transfer happened at the end of the financial year.

In relation to financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value including cash and cash equivalents, other
assets and liabilities, and net assels attributable to holders of redeemable units, their carrying amount appraximate
fair value because of the short nature and the high credit quality of counlerparties and these assets and liabilities
have been classified as Level 2 of the hierarchy in accordance with FRS 102

ih) Transfars between levels of the fair value hierarchy

There were Ao transfers between the Levels of the fair value hierarchy during the financial year ended 30 April 2018
or during the financial year ended 30 April 2017.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CCNTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy {continued)

fe) Level 3 reconciliation

The table below shows a recanciiation of all movements in the fair value of financial instruments categorised within
Level 3 between the beginning and end of the reporting period.

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2018 30 April 2017

Level 3 Level 3

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss Uss'o00 uss'ooo
Cpening balance at the start of the year 18 18
Total realised and unrealised gains for the year 2 -
Purchases - .
Sales and repayments - -
Transfers in lo Lavel 3 - -
Transfers out of Level 3 - -
Closing balance at the end of the year 16 18

(d) Stgnificant unobservable inputs used in measuring fair value

Significant unobservable inputs used in measuring fair value represents the latest availabla ret asset value of the
units/shares of the iliquid investments in funds based on the company's recent transactions.

(&) Effect of change in significan! assumptions of Leve! 3 financial instruments

If the fair value of the Fund's investment in funds changed by 3% then the fair value of the Level 3 investment in
funds would change by USS487 (2017: US5534).

Leverage

Where a fund permits leverage, the underlying volatility of the fund will be significantly greater than would ctherwise
have been the case without the permitted leverage. Whilst this gives a fund the ability to participate in higher retums
associated with greater exposure, it alsa gives a fund expasure to increased losses where markets in general and a
fund in particular, invest in assets where prices suffer daclines

Cartain investment funds in which @ fund may invest use material levals of leverage and are not limited in either
their borrewing capacity nor in their level of margin commitment. The total value of positions held by these funds
may exceed their net assel values. The leverage acquired offars the possibility of achieving a much greater overall
retumn, but also increases the Fund's volatilty and carries the risk of total loss of the amount invested. Please refer
to Note 11 for details on borrowings of the Fund

14 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The capital of the Trust is represented by the net assets attributable to unitholders of the Fund. The Trust is subject
o quarterly redemptions requests of the unitholdars,

The Trust's aim with respect to management of its capital is to safeguard its ability 1a eontinue as a going concern

Tha Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets stiributable to unitholders of the Fund. As
detailed in Note 13, the Fund's investment restrictions, as dafined in the Prospectus, some of which pertain to the
management of kquidity risk and concentrations thereof include restrictions in respect of investment in closed-ended
funds, restrictions in respect of redemptions, restrictions in respect of the percentage holding allowable in any
individual Investment fund. There are specific guidefines in place for mendtoring and reporting breaches, and
situations where holdings come close to restriction lavels

25

102/192



EDINETOOOO

O00OO00O00O00000000o0noonoOonod(esL8s)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

As detailed in Mote 11, the Fund also has a loan facility available to cover a cash shorifall caused by mismatched
settlement dates on purchase and sale transactions and 1o fund redemptions; and for investment purposes. subject
o @ maximum of 10% of the Fund's net asset value, Io faciitale additional investment in Investment Funds.

DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The Manager does not recommend the payment of a dividend, All income will be “rofled-up®, and income will not be
distributed but will be retained in the Fund and reflected in the net asset value per unit.

FOREIGM EXCHANGE RATE

The foliowing foreign exchange rate was used lo translate assets and liabilities inlo the reporting currency us
Dotlars):

As at Asat
30 April 2018 30 April 2017
Euro 0.8261 09162

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Fund had no commitment ar contingent liabilities as at 30 April 2018 and 30 April 2017,
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

There were no significant events during the year ended 30 April 2018 that require adjustment to, or disclosure in
these consolidated financial stalements

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no significant evants subsequent to the year end date that require adjustment to, or disclosure in these
consolidated financial statements

CONTROLLING PARTIES

The Manager does not consider there to be an immadiate or ultimate controlling party of the Fund.

HIGHEST AND LOWEST NAY PER UNIT DURING THE YEAR

Highest Lowest
Unit Class NAV per Unit  NAV per Unit
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - US Doliar Class Uss147.92 US5142 52
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - Euro Class EUR134.40 EUR130.38

26
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HSBC SPECIAL OFPORTUNITIES FUND

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 30 APRIL 2018 (UNALUDITED)

Security Description

USD (2017: 103.21%)

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 -
Special Investmeant

AG Super Fund International Ltd, - Glass XXXX Series 2 -
Special Investment

Beach Point Total Return Offshare Fund Il - 1S Seres V01
MWov 2007 GSY

BFAM Asian Opportunities Fund Ltd. - Class A-U

Series 1 NI GSY

CQS Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund Ltd. -

Class B USD Shares Non New Issues

D.E. Shaw Composite International Fund -

Aptil 1" Subscription

Davidsen Kempner International (BVI) Ltd, -

Class C Tranche 1 Series 1 Jan 18 - GSY

Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Lid, -

Class C Tranche 3 Series 1 Jan 18 - GSY

Davidsan Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. -

Class C Tranche 4 Series 1 Jan 16 - GSY

Paim Lane Credit Opportunities Fund Ltd. -

Senes A USD - Series 04-2018

Palmerston Credd Feeder Fund Lid. - Class A Saries 092014
Starboard Value and Opportunity Fund Lid. - Class A Series 1
Third Paint Uttra Ltd. - Class C - Series 12 NI - GSY

Third Point Ultra Lid. - Class C NI Series B - GSY

Third Point Ultra Lid. - Class D - Series 2

Tyrus Capital Event Fund Lid. - Class A USD - GSY

Paortfolio of Investments (2017: 103.21%)

Met current assets (Including derivatives)

Total net assets

i
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Holding

2522

12,104
432

13.250
28,857

2,500

28,110
1,140

243
1.416
15,262
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Market value % of total
US§'000 nét assets
) 0.02
T 002
4,202 10.87
2173 S62
2683 5.94
T.577 18.60
208 (.54
2,507 548
4, 064 10.51
2,510 649
3,669 549
3,097 7.80
807 208
1,691 412
1,488 384
1,994 518
38,503 89.59
38,503 90 58
158 0.41
38,661 100.00
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

INVESTOR INFORMATION AS AT 30 APRIL 2018 (UNAUDITED)

Met asset value par unit As at As at
30 April 2018 30 April 2097
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - US Dollar Class LISS144.57 US5141.88
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - Euro Class EUR120.38 EUR131.15
Portfollo classification
As at As at
30 April 2018 30 April 2017
Unlisted securities 100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
Sector Allocation
As at As at
30 April 2018 30 April 2017
Event Driven 40.40% 54.55%
Multi-Strategy 32.10% 24.75%
Credit Long/Short 26.80% 14.73%
Equity Long/Short . 587%
Cash and Expenses 0.70% -
100.00%% 100.00%
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT PORTFOLIO CHANGES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018* (UNAUDITED)

Purchases***
Description MNominal Ciost
Uss'o00
Palmerston Credit Feeder Fund Lid. - Class A Senes 0872014 25110 3500
Starboard Value and Opportunity Fund Lid. - Class A Serias 1 1,140 2,850
Palm Lane Credit Opportunities Fund Ltd - Series A USD - Senes 04-2018 2,500 2.500
BFAM Asian Opportunities Fund Ltd. - Class A-U Series 1 NI GSY 12,104 2,148
Davidson Kempner International (BV1) Lid. - Class C Tranche 3 Series 1 Jan 18 = GSY 15,780 1,90
Third Paint Ultra Ltd, - Clazs D - Series 2 1416 1.074
Davidson Kempner Intarnational (B\W1) Lid. - Class C Trancha 1 Seriag 1 Jan 18 - GSY 358 143
Sales®*
Description Mominal Procesds
Us5'000
East Lodge Capital Credit Opporunities Fund - Clazs B 3,000 3368
Davidson Kempner International (BV1) Lid. - Class C Tranche 3 Series 1 Jan 16 - GSY 22610 3274
ENA Opportunity Offshore Fund Lid. - Class C Shares Restricted Sernes 1 Jan 2016 3.000 3,084
JHL Capital Group Fund Ltd. - Class C 3,500 3001
Starboard Value and Opportunity Fund Ltd. - Class A Serias 62 1,140 2,850
Black Diamond Thematic Lid. - Series & 30,000 2478
D.E. Shaw Composite intermational Fund - April 1st Subscription .21 2,151
Tyrus Capital Event Fund Ltd. - Class A USD - GSY 12,023 1.816
EMA Opportunity Offshore Fund Ltd. - Class C Shares Restricled Seres 1 Dec 2015 1,125 1,148
Third Paint Ultra Ltd. - Class D - Senes 22 1,074 1,074
CQS Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund Lid. - Class B USD Shares MNoan New
Issues 127 750
Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class C NI Series B GSY 80 454
Hightand Crusader || Fund : et
Davidson Kempner Intemational (BW1) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 3 Series 1 Jan 18 - GSY 2530 ATT
Davidson Kempner International (BV1) Lid. - Class C Tranche 1 Series 1 Jan 16 = GSY 358 143
Bluebay VRF EUR - Class S GSY 1 1
AG Super Fund International Ltd - Class XXX Serles 1 Special Investment 015 "
AG Super Fund Internaticnal Ltd. - Class XXX Series 2 Special Investmaent 0.13 -

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases or sales of a secunty exceading 2% of the net
assets of the Trust at the star of the year, |n any evant, at a minimum, the 20 largest purchases and 20 largest sales
must be shown.

** Mo market value is shown for these securities as the value is less than USS500

*** There were no other purchases and sales during the financial year ended 30 April 2018
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUMNITIES FUND

INFORMATION ON HSBC ALTERNATIVE STRATEGY FUND
HIBC Alternative Strategy Fund is an umbrella unit trust comprising the following sub fund and classes (as at 30 April 2018):

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund = US Doltar Class
HSBC Spectal Opporiunities Fund — Euro Class

collectively known as the HSBC Special Opportunities Funds

Unitholders should note that coples of the latest financial statements of each of the above Funds are available
from the Manager free of charge on request.
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HSBC
30
37,929,234.63
1,492,777.30
37,872,480.10 4,206,118
250,572.30
145.42 16,150
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HSBC
HSBC
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HSBC
10

HSBC
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30 100,000 1,446
100,000
100,000
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30
HSBC
N 0
Daniel Stephen
Rotherford
HSBC
HSBC Cl
0
) TSB TSB
Thomas Lindsay Slattery
0
Carl Joseph Rosumek
KPMG
. 0
Isabel Robins
HSBC
0
Anthony Charles Corfield
0
Stephen James Rouxel
ICAEW FSCI 0
Jason Liddy

14
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HSBC

HSBC

2,312.0

30

HSBC

HSBC Portfolio Selection Fund

2,032.7

HSBC
60.4
HSBC Uni Folio
HSBC
37.9
HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund
HSBC UCITS
UCITS 181.0

HSBC UCITS AdvantEdge Fund
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22
38 59
23 103
30 31 UFJ

111.06
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HSBC
2017 12 31
2017 2016
16,594 1,843 31,610 3,511
10 2,574 286 4,015 446
11 15,947 1,771 36,036 4,002
12 - - - -
13 - - 9 1
35,115 3,900 71,670 7,960
14 14,295 1,588 24,778 2,752
15 9,059 1,006 17,342 1,926
23,354 2,594 42,120 4,678
16 158 18 158 18
11,603 1,289 29,392 3,264
11,761 1,306 29,550 3,282
35,115 3,900 71,670 7,960
2018 3 29
SJ
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2017 12 31
2017 2016
49,359 5,482 66,848 7,424
34,615 3,844 46,939 5,213
14,744 1,637 19,909 2,211
1,243 138 (295) (33)
15,987 1,776 19,614 2,178
1,328 147 889 99
) 7,410 823 5,964 662
13 9 1 10 1
8,747 971 6,863 762
7,240 804 12,751 1,416
29 3 41 5
7,211 801 12,710 1,412
2016
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2017 12 31
2017 2016
7,240 804 12,751 1,416
17 (906) (101) 356 40
17 21,530 2,391 (18,029) (2,002)
17 (18,766) (2,084) 21,278 2,363
(29) (€)) (41) ®)
9,069 1,007 16,315 1,812
(25,000) (2,777) (17,000) (1,888)
(25,000) .777) (17,000) (1,888)
(15,931) (1,769) (685) (76)
31,610 3,511 32,642 3,625
915 102 (347) (39)
17 16,594 1,843 31,610 3,511
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2017 12 31
2017 1 1 158 18 29,392 3,264 29,550 3,282
- - 7,211 801 7,211 801
- - 7,211 801 7,211 801
- - (25,000) @.777) (25,000) @.,777)
2017 12 31 158 18 11,603 1,289 11,761 1,306
2016 1 1 158 18 33,682 3,741 33,840 3,758
- - 12,710 1,412 12,710 1,412
- - 12,710 1,412 46,550 5,170
- - (17,000) (1,888) (17,000) (1,888)
2016 12 31 158 18 29,392 3,264 29,550 3,282
HSBC
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HSBC
HSBC
IFRS 2008
(@) IFRS
IFRS 1ASB
IFRS
2017 12 31 2017 12 31
IFRS 1ASB IFRS
2017 12 31
2017 2017
®)
IFRS
1ASB 2018 IFRS IFRS 2012-2014
IFRS
1ASB IFRS IFRS 15 IFRS 16
IFRS 16
IFRS 9
2014 1ASB IAS 39 IFRS
FVOCI FVPL

IAS 39
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©
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IAS 39

IFRS IAS 39

2018

IFRS 15
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2017 2016
42,670 48,232
6,689 14,243
- 4,373
49,359 66,848
9,425 9,964
2,439 11,090
16,731 14,469
6,020 11,416
34,615 46,939
14,744 19,909

0.8

11
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2017 2016
(51) 51
1,294 (346)
1,243 (295)
2017 2016
1,328 889
1,328 889
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2017 2016
6
2
12 31 9 8

HSBC HSBC
1996
2008

2017 2016
146 117
12 31 146 117

HSBC

2017 2016
HSBC 63 40
12 31 63 40

2016
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17

10

2017 2016
- 29 41
12 31 29 41
2012 12 13 2012 10
2013
10
2015 29 2015 10
2015 10
2E
28,844 2016 40,980
0.40 2016 0.30
2017 2016
250.00 25,000 170.00 17,000
2017 12 31 2017 25 2016
2017 2016
16,594 31,610
16,594 31,610

2016
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11

12

2017 2016
726 658
2,863 2,930
- 427
3,589 4,015
(1,015) -
2,574 4,015

2017 2016
5,881 2,763
4,720 7,235
5,976 11,839
- 14,199
16,577 36,036
(630) -
15,947 36,036

2017 HSBC 2017
HSBC 63234

HSBC
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13
1,190 1,190
1,181 1,181
9 9
1,190 1,190
2017 12 31 - -
1,190 1,190
1,181 1,181
2016 12 31 9 9
14
2017 2016
14,295 24,778
14,295 24,778
15
2017 2016
6,960 13,799
1,577 3,543
522 -

9,059 17,342
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16
2017 2016
2016 100,000
2016 100,000
12 31 158 158
17
2017 2016
a
(915) 346
9 10
(906) 356
b
1,441 (651)
20,089 (17,378)
21,530 (18,029)
C
(10,483) 18,270
(8,283) 3,008
(18,766) 21,278
d
16,594 31,610
16,594 31,610
18
2017 12 31 2016
19
a

HSBC
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HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
2017 12 31 90 90
16,594 - . 16,594
937 1,554 83 2,574
13,401 2,476 70 15,947
30,932 4,030 153 35,115
2016 12 31 90 %
31,610 . - 31,610
1,183 1,246 1,586 4,015
8,173 22.273 5,590 36,036
40,966 23,519 7.176 71,661
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12
14,295 14,295 14,295 - - -
9,059 9,059 9,059 - - -
2017 12 31
23,354 23,354 23,354 - - -
24,778 24,778 24,778 - - -
17,342 17,342 17,342 - - -
2016 12 31
42,120 42,120 42,120 - - .
Cc
HSBC
d
HSBC 2017

2016
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e

2017 12 31 b
t
2017 2016
146 184
131 116
46 31
- 1
1 1
71 27
395 360
f
2017 12 31
31,819 2,002 1,102 192 35,115
(33,590) (1,525) - - (35,115)
(1,771) 477 1,102 192 -
2016 12 31
37,677 5,195 24,930 3,868 71,670
(50, 760) (3,799) (16,685) (426) (71,670)
(13,083) 1,396 8,245 3,442 -
20
2017 12 31
21
a
2017 12 31 2016

IAS 24

134/192



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HSBC C.l.
PBCI PBCI
2017 12 31 PBCI 1,327,968
2016 889,493
b
HSBC HSBC
2017 2016
12 31 1 12 31
! 1 1
2017 2016
25,000 17,000
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
1 1 1 1
48,410 16,594 31,610 31,610
726 726 658 658
- - 427 427
49,136 17,320 32,695 32,695
24,304 14,295 24,778 24,778
1,456 522 - -
25,760 14,817 24,778 24,778
2017 2016

1,037
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9,425 9,964
15,363 13,704
6,020 11,416
1,328 889
339 1,278
2017 2016
24,211 46,139
100,000 135,180 1,862 419
22,349 45,720
11,035 28,882
10,000 13,518
745 168
10,290 28,714
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
1986 25
HSBC
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HSBEC Management [Guerniey) Limited

Reghstered No: 15988
Financlal Statements

Balance Sheet as at 31 Decembar 2017

Kot 7 2015
USE 000 U500
Assets
Cazh and cash eguivalents 9 15,554 i
Trase and pthe hiebvabli ] 15M 4,013
Prapaymirts and sotnad rosee 1 15,547 600
ImsvtEImen in subfidianies (F] - !
Prepeny, plit und pqueprtant 13 E )
Totdl aspety 35,115 716N
| —— —
Lisbilities and sguity
Linkslithes
Trade and other payabies 14 18195 24,772
Acrusls and oihee Rabilies 15 f 10 ] 17,342
Total Rabidvties LIS 1
iEalled g share cagital 15 1% 154
Rezgred earreng 15,883 4.0
Tetal equiy nTe 28,550
Tots Hpbiktiey and equity 35,138 i
—— —

The Notes on pages 12 to 27 form an integral paet of these Financial Statements.

These Financial Statements on pages 8 1o 27 were approved by the Board of Dinectors on 29 March 2018 and
were signed on its behalf by:

a bl A

C I Rosumek 51 Rouxsl
Directar Director
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HSBL Management (Guernsey] Limited

Financlal Statements

Incame Statemaent for the year ended 31 December 2017

L=t onr ki
UES000 U500
Fist ] COOMPIERON INCOME 29,359 65, BAE
Fieit 3t DS it ton dapenls Ja608 6,959
Mgt bpn ingomin | FLREE] 0%,
Other cperating income [ |expental 3 1143 [295)
et Sgeialing income 15,587 19614
Eerplerpnd forpeniation and Ecnelins 4 113 L
Geneial and admindiralive gpendss 50 rAND LX)
Deprecabon of property. plant and equipment 1 ] 10
Tarsi opersting Experies BTar i BEY
Prisfi o tan ag 1,75 J
Tan exgmnis ! & LH
Profi o e year TR re

The Notes on pages 12 to 27 form an integral part of these Fnancial Statements.

AR amgunty repocted in the Income Statement reiate o conlinuing operations. Therg has been ng
comprehensive income of expense other than the prafit for the year as shown above [2016: 5 Nil).
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HSBC Management (Guernsey] Limited

Financial Stataments

Statement of Cash Flaws for the year ended 31 Decermber 2017

Hos mr 2016
%] RO

Cash flewi fram opdratisg Betivinies
St befare i T80 b ]
Adjentmeents for:
IHon-gash Mema incladed n prods badore o 17 1306} I 1%
‘Change in opevaling kiiels 17 11530 R3]
Change in cperitng Labsnle 17 [ra.TeE) FiE ]
Tw L} (a1}
Nt cash penarsted from opariong RoIvERs 9,043 IS
Canh figwi lrom Baancing sl
Dwvidndi ukd 15,0004 ER000)
Nt gaah used in dsancing activites 35, 0y L7000 J
Mt decriaie In cash and cash egavalesty [LLE 1 11] 635k
o A gash eguival e Droagnt formand LN Az
Bt of Echangs rate changes on cah and cath guilens 1% {347}
Cash and gl epaivalents carned forwmard ir 16558 L0

The Notes on pages 12 ta 27 form an integral part of these Financial STatemants.
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HSBL Managerment (Guernsey) Limited
Financial Staternents

Staternent of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2017

Called up Rrtsned Totd
hare capital TATEEE Bty
s oo LS5 iy Lga00
AL 1 Jamanry 3017 158 39,958 9550
Beafit for the year . LM T
Todal comprehensrer income for the year B T4 w11
Ciwidends 10 sharshaliders . |25,000) 15,0000
A% B2 Dacambesr DOLT 158 id 600 11,781
Cadiesd up Awisred Tertall
ahare capivsl Birnngy Egisty’
L] LS00 Lss'n00
A 1 Sanusey 2386 258 LT+ 33,840
Frofit for the year . 11710 12710
ot Coempea g frivg G 407 L wia ® 1270 &5, 550
Civichendi to sharetalden. - {17,000 117,500}
AE 11 December 2016 158 ™, 19550

The Notes on pages 12 to 27 form an Integral part of these Financial Statements,
Eqquity is whelly attributable to equity shareholders of HSBC Monagement |Guernsey] Limited.
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HSBC Management (Guernsay] Limited

Motes on the Financial Statements

1 Basls of preparation and significant accounting policies

The Financial Statements of the Entity have been prepared in sccordance with the Comaanies [Guernsey) Law,
2008 a5 apolicable to compasnies using IFRS, The principal acceunting poficies applied in the prepacation of
these Financlal Staternents have besn consistently applied to all of the years presented, unless otherwite
stated.

1.1 Basis of preparation

{a) Compllance with International Financial Reporting Standards

The Financial Statermnents of the Entity have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs a3 isued by the 1ASS,
inclading interpretations ssued by the IFRS Interpretations Cammattee.

At 31 Decernber 2017, there were no unendoried standards effective for the year ended 31 December 2017
affecting these Financisl Statements and the Entity's applicathon of IFRSs results in no differences between
IFRSS as issued by the IASE and IFRSs .

Standards adopted during the year ended 31 December 2017

There were no new standards applied in 2017. During 2017, the Entity adopted a number of interpretations
and améndments ta standards which had an inslgnificant effect on the Financial Statements of the Entity.

(b} Future sccounting developments
Minar amendments to IFRSs

The A8 has published @ member of minor amesdments 1o IFRSs in the "Annual Impeovements to IFRSS
2012-2014" and kn a series of stand-glene amendments, which are effective from 1 January 2008 The Entity
expects they will have an indgnificant impact, when adopted, on the Finandial Statements of the Emity.

Major new IFRSS

Thee IASE has published IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’, [FRS 15 “Rovenee from Contracts with Custormers’ and
IFRS 16 "Leases’. The Entity has assessed that IFRS 16 will have no significant effect, when applied, on the
Financial Statements of the Entity.

IFA% 3 Finonciol nstruments”

Im July 2014, the IASE issued IFRS 8 Financial Instrumenty’, which iz the comprenhensive standard to replace 1AS
39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’, and includes requirements for clagsification and
measuremant of financial assets and liabilities, impairment of financial aszets and hedge accounting.

Classification and measurement

The classification and measwrement of financial assets will depend on haw these are managed (the Ertity's
business model] and their contractua’ cash fow characteristics. These factors determine whether the financial
a5sent are measured at amortised codt, (air value through other compréhensive income [“FYOCIT) or fair value
throygh profit of loss ("FWPL"). The combined effect of the application of the business mode! and the
eontractusal cash flow characteristics tests may résult i some differences (n the population of financial ssets
measured at amortised cost of far valus compared with 1AS 33, However, based on an assessment of linanial
assets performed to date and espectations around changes to balance cheet composition, the Entity expects
that the averall impact of any change will not be signeficant,
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HSBE Management [Guermnsey) Limited

Notes on the Financial Statements

1 hﬂsdﬂlﬂmmﬂﬂgﬂummgcm

1.1 Basls of preparation (continued]
(b} Future accounting developments (continued)

Impolrment

The impairment requirements apply to financial assets measured at amonssed cost and FYOCI, and lease
receivables and certain loan commitments and fnancial guarantee contracts. At initlal recognition, an
Impairment allowance (or provision in the case of commitments and guarantees] 's reguired for expected
credit losses ['ECL) rasulting from default evenits that aré paisible within the nest 12 menths [*L2-month ECL).
In the gvent of a significant increase in cradit risk, an allowance (or provision) is reguired for ECL resulting from
all possible default events over the expected life of the financiel instrument (Wfetime ECL). Finaneisl stiers
where 12-manth ECL is recognised ane in “stage 1'; inancial agsets that are considered to have experignced a
significant increase in credit risk are in “stage 2°; and financial assets for which there it objective eviderce of
impalrment so are considared to be in default or otherwise credit impaired are in ‘stage 3,

The assessment of cradit risk and the estimation of ECL are required to be unblased and probability-weighted,
and should Incorporate ol available information relevant to the assessment, indluding information about past
events, current conditions and reasonable snd supportable forecasts of economic conditions at the reporting
date. bn addition, the estimation of ECL should take into account the time value of meney. As 3 result, the
fecognition and measurement of Impairment is intended to be more forward-locking than wnder 1A% 39, and
the resulting impalrment charge will tend to be more volatibe, IFRS 9 will 2k tend to result In an increase in
the total level of impairment allowances, since 3l financial assets will be assessed for at least 13-month ECL
and the population of financial assets to which lifetime ECL applies is llkely 1o be larger than the population for
which there is objective evidence of impairment In 2ccordance with 1AS 39,

Hedge accounting

The general hedge accounting reguinernents aim to simplify hedge accounting, creating a stronger link with risk
management strategy and permitting hedge accounting to be applied to a greater variety of hedging
instruments and risks. However, they do not explicitly address msoro hedge accounting strategles, which are
particularly importans for banks. As a result, IFRS 3 includes an accounting policy cholce to remain with [AS 39
hedge aceounting.

Transitional impact

Thee requirements of IFRS 9 “Finangial Instrumenits™ will be sdopted from 1 January 2018, The elassification and
meaturement and impairment requirements are applied retrozpectively by adjusting the opening Balance
Sheet at the date of initial appiication, with no requinerment to restate comparative periods. The Entity has
asessed the Impact of IFRS 9 and expects that the stondard wall have no sgnificant effect, when applisd, on
the Financial Statements of the Entity. The Entity does not Intend to restate comparatives.

IFRS 15 ‘Reweniog from Contracts with Custovmers®

Iry May 2014, the 1ASE lsswed IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ and it i effective for annual
periods beginning on or sfter 1 january NNE, IFRS 15 provides & prnchples-bated approach fo revenue
recognition and introduces the concept of recognising revenue for performance obligations as they are
satisfied. The Entity will adopt the standard on its mandatory effective date, and the standard will be appliad
a0 3 modified retrospective basis, recognising the cumulative effect. if any, of Initially spphying the standards as
an adjustrnent 19 the opening balance of retalned earnings. The Entity has assessed the impact of IFRS 15 and
expects that the standacd will have na significant effecs, when applied, on the Financial Sttements of the
Entity,

(£} Foreign currencles

Transactions in foreign curreéncies are recordad at the rate of éxnange on the date of the transaction, Assets
and Nabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exthange at the Balance Sheet
date except non-manetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost that are transiated using the rate of
exchange at the initial transaction date. Exchange differences are included In other cemprehensive incoma or
i the Income Saterment depending on where the gain or loss on the underlying item is recogrised,

13
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HSBC Management [Guernsey] Limited

Motes on the Finangial Statements

1 Basis of thon and it accounting policies (continued)

The funetional cisrrency of the Entity Is US Dollas, which is also the presentational currency of the Financial
Statemaents of the Entity.

The Financal Statements présent information about the Entity &s an individual undertaking and rat Ebout its
[Eroug.

{e} Critical sceounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial information requires the use of estimates and jutgements abowt future conditions.

n view of the inherent uncertainties and the high level of subjectiity involved in the recognitian or

measurgmant of items highlighted as the critical accounting estimates and [udgements in section 1.2 below, it

is possitle that the outcomes in the next financial year could differ from those on which management's

emtimates are based, resulting in materlally different conclusions from those reached by management for the )
purposes of these Fnancial Statements. Management’s selection of the Entity's accounting policies which

contaln critical estimates and judgements reflects the materiality of the ilerms ta which the policies are applied

and tha high degres of [udgement and sstimation uncertainty imohed.

ifi Golng concern

The Financisl Statements are prepared on 3 gaing concern basls, as the Directors are satisfied that the Entity
has the resources to contine in business for the forespeable future, In making this assessmend, the Directars
have considered a wide range of Information relating to present and future conditions, Including future
prajections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

[g) Use of estimates and assumption about futuse conditions

The preparation of financial information requires the wse of estimates and assumptions sbout future
conditions. These estimates and assumptiond refuine managament Lo make fudgments about the carrying
value used in gbtaining Met Asset Vabug ["8AY") which are not readily availabbe from sources ather than thae
underlying fund adminlstratorn, due 1o the time lag between the Financial Statements being prepared ang the
redease of the final MAV. These estimates and assumptions are based on historical expensnce and other factaes
that are considened to be relevant. Actual results may differ from thess estimates.

The Entisy will continue to review whether these astimates that hava been made represent an accusate

rearesentation of the financial information provided. Revidlonds to accounting estimates are recognized [n the

petiod in which the essimazes are revised and in any future perisds affected. i the opinian of management, all

netmal and recurring sdjustmants comsidersd necessary for a fair presentation of the Entity’s income J
S=aement, Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash Flows in these Financia! Statements have been made.

1.2 Significant accounting pofices
(a) Inwestments kn subsidiaries

The Entity classifies investments in eatities which It controls a5 subsidiaries, Where an entity is governed by
voting rights, the Enkity conselidates when it holds, dicectly or indirectly, the necessary voling rights 1o pass
resoiutions by the governing body. In all other cases, the assessment of cantred is more complex and reguines
jusgeenert of other factors, including having exposure to variability of returns, gawer to direct relevant
sctivities and whether power ks held as agent or principal. The Entity's imvestments in subsidisries are stated at
cost less impainment losses.

LCritizel nocowating estimates and judgements

[Festments in subsidiaries are tested for impainment when there is an indication that the invastment may be
impalred. fmpalirment testing involves significant judgement in detefmining the value in use, and in particulas
estimating the present values of cash flows expected ta arise from contiruing to hold the investment and the
rates used to discount these cash flows.
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HS8L Mansgement [Guernsey] Limited
Notes on the Financial Statements

1 Basls of preparation and significant sccaunting policies (continued)

1.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Employes compensation and benefits
Share-based payments

The Entity enters into both equity-setiled and cash-settled share-based payment arrangements with s
employees as compensation for sendces provided by employees. The vesting period for these schemes. may
tommence before the grant date if the employees have started to render services in respect of the award
before the grant date. Expenses are recognised when the emnployee starts to render service 1o which the award
relates,

Cancellations result from the fallure to meet a non-visting condition during the vesting period, and are treated
a5 an atceleration of vesting recognlied imeediately in the Income Statement. Fallure to meet o vesting
condition by the employee is nat treated as a cancellation, snd the amount of experds recognised for the
award is adjusted to reflect the number of awards expected to west,

Post-employment benefit plans

The HSBC group operates a number of pension schemes (incleding defired benefit and defined contribution)
and post-employment benefin schemes. Payments to defined contribution plans are chasged 3% an expense as
the employess render service.

Defined benefit pension obligations are calculated using the projected unit credit method, The net charge 1o
the Income Staterment mainky comprises the service cost and the net interest on the net defined benefit asset
of lishility, and is presented In operating expenses.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit asset or lisbility, which comprise actuarial gaing and losses, retum
on pan assets (exchading Interest) and the effect of the assot celling (if any, excluding interest), are recogrised
immed-ately in other comperehensive income. The net defined benefis asset or Hability represents the present
value of defined benefit obligations reduced by the fair value of plan assets, after applyving the asset celling
test, where the net defined benefit surplus ks Bmited 1o the present value of avallable refunds and reductions
in futwe contributions to the plan.

The cost af obligations arising from other past-ermployment plans are accounted for on the same bash as
defined benefit pension plans,

fe)  Tam

Incoma tax comprises current tax and deferred tax Intome tax is recognised in the Income Statement except
to the extent that it relates to iterns recognised in other comprehensive income or directly Im equity, in which
case the tax i recognised [n the same statement in which the related item appears,

Current tax Is the tax expected 1o be payable on the tnable profit for the vear and any adpustmert o tax
paryable in respect of previous yeass. The Entity provides for potential current tax liabilties that may arise on
the basls of ihe amounts expedted to be pald to the tax authorities,

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differentes between the carrying amourts of assets and Fabllities in
the balance sheet, and the amounts attributed to such assets and labiities for tax perposes. Deferred tax is
calculated wiing the tax rates expected to apply in the periods as the assets will be realised or the iabilizies
settied. Current and deferred tax is calculated based on tax rates and laws enacted, or substantively nacted,
by the batance sheet date.

Criticad sccounting estimotes ond [udgements

The recognithon of a deferred tan asser relies on an assessment of the probability and sufficiency of future
taxabile prodits, future reversals of existing taxabile temporary differences and ongaing tax planning strategles.
In the absence of a history of taxable prafits, the most significant judgements relate to expected future
profitability and to the applicability of tax plarming strategies, incuding corparate reorganisation,
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HSBL Management [Guernsey) Limited

Motes on the Financial Statements

1  Basis of ration and nt 3 continued)

1.3 Significant seeounting policies (continued)
{d] Trade and other receivables, Prépayments and sccrued incame

Trade and other necehvables are recognised Initially at fair value and subsequently messured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision or Impairment. & provision for impairment ks established
when thera 15 abjective cuidence that the Entity will not be able to collect all amounts dus according to the
origingd terms of the receheables. The amourt of the pravision is the diference between the atset's CAFTyIng
value 2l the present value of astimated future cash fiows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
When a trade recelvable is uncollectable, it Is written off against traife receivables and the amaount of the kes is
recognised in the Income Statement. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previausly written off are eredited to
the Income Statement.

(e} Trade and other payables, Accruals and ather labilities )

Trade ond other payable represent llabillties for goods and services provided to the Entity by other group
tompanies pror 1o the end of the financial year, which are unpaid. This amounts are recogrised initially at
thelr fair valuee 3nd subssguently measurad at amortised cost useng the effective inferest method.

i Called up share capital

Financia instruments isssed are generally claisified a5 equity when there is no contractial obligation to
transfer cash or pther financial assets. Incremental costs directhy attributable to the isue of equity instrumenis
are ghown in sguity a5 a deduction from the proceeds, net of .

{g) Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly lguid investments that are readily camvertible 1o known amounts of
cash and which ase subject to an ingignificant risk of change in value, Such investments are normalfy those with
less than thres eanths’ maturity from the date of acquisition,

{h} Property, plant and equipment

equipment, fixtures and fivngs {Induding equipment on operating leates wheve the cormpamy i the lessor) are
stated at cost Jess Impairment bosses and depreciation over thesr useful lives, which are generally batween 2
years and S years. Progeerty, plant and eauipment is subject 1o an impairment review il their carrying amount
miay ot be recoverable.

The carrying amourt of #n item of property, plant and equipment shall be derecognised on disposal or when J
o futere sconamic benefits are expected from its use of disposal.

The gain or lots avising from the derccognition shall be incluced in the profit or hoss when the item i3
derecognised, The gaing or loss shall be detenmined as the difterence batwedn the neq disposal proceeds, if
any, and the carrying amosat of the item. Gains shall not be classified as revinue,

Any cansidevation receked on disposal is recognised initially at its fair value. W the payment for the item is
deferrad, the consideration recetved Is recogrised initially 01 the cash price equivalent. The difference between
the noeinal amount of the consideration and the cash price equivalent is recognised &5 interest revenue in
accordanes with 145 12 raflacting the effective yield on the receivable,
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HSBC Management (Guernsey] Limited

Notes on the Financial Statements

1 Badis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued]

1.2 Significant accounting policies [continued)

(i} Operating Income

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all financial Instruments excluding those dassified as held for trading ar
designated at fadr value are recognised in “interest income” and ‘Interest expense’ in the ncome Statement
using the effective Interest method. The efiective interest rate (s the rate that exactly discourts estimated
future cash receipts of payments through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, &
shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial ascet or financial Fability,

Interest an impadred financial assets (s recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
fiaws for the punpese of measuring the impairment loss.

Net fee income is earmed from a diverse range of services provided by the Entity (o its customers, Net fee
Income Is accounted for as follows:

= Fee income earned on the execution of 5 significant act s recognised as revenue when the act s
compbeted (for examphe, fees arising from negotiating a transaction, such as the acquisition of shares for 3
third party); and

+  Fee income earned from the provision of sendces Is recognised as revenae as the services are provided
(for example, asset management services.

¢  Fee expenses pald for the distribution and provision of sendices is recognised s expense 35 the services
are provided.

Dividend income i3 recognised when the right to receive a payment is established, This 5 usually the dats

when the shareholders approve the dividend for unlisted equity securitias,

Dther operating income is earned from diverse range of services provided by the Ertity 1o it customers.

(i) OMseting of financlal assets and financial Nabliites

Financial assets and linancial liabJities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance shest when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle an a net
batis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,
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HSBC Management (Guermnsey] Limited

Moites e the Financial Statements

2 Netfee income

w1 il
UL USED00
Fund mpnegyment, sdmisisiration @ trinter fee LRS- 48332
Fund pedoiming fee ] 14,243
Fagemat feri * £373
Total fie mcase 9,18 56,843
AL gaeremilpibons i 1o group undertakings 415 554
Aeturr coammitiibon pabd o Thind partes 2am BL,050
Invetment adwitory el 16TH 14,469
Fured predsemance fees £om 11,416
Tanal fee expenmes 15 48,039
Year ended 51 December 174 15,909 J

Fund management and tustee fees

The Entity receives management, administration and trastee fees, normally based on 2 percertage of the
underlying Met Asset Value of total commétments of the respective funds, Managenient, adminkstratien and
trustes fees are accounted for on an sceruals basis and the management, administration and trustes fees
recenvabie a1 the year end are detailed in Nole 11 Figutary income from the Entity's regulated fiduciary
activities amaunted 1o S1.4 miflipn (20165: $0.8 millian).

Rsturn commissions

The Entity pays, at its discretion, returm commissions to group undertakings and cortain approved third parties
whi inrodute subscribers to funds under managesment. Retwsn comemissions fall into two categories: First a
portion of the Placerent fee (where applicable] and second an ongaing tradler commmission based on the NAY
of monies introguced by units snd which remain associated with the particular wndt. Commissions are
accounted fof on an accruals basis and the cammissions payable ot the year end are detailed in Note 15.

Investrent advisory fees

Thie Entity pays investment advisory fees to a fellow subsidiary of the HSEC Group and to third party managers

whese management has been delegated, investment advisory fees ane accounted for on an accruals hasis.

Fund performance fees J

Under the various management agreements with the underhying funds, the Entity may be entitled to a
performante fee. The Entity has the ability to share any such Performance fees with issoclates and nvestment
advisers a3 sppropriate. Performarce fees are recognized when the right to recefve the perfarmance fee

income s estabiished.
3 Other Imcome [ {exp ]
FTTR) 014
i3] USE000
Ot gparating [wapnse] | income 151) 11
Exshsngt gans. |/ [lasen] 114 L]
Fear saded 31 December L3 [1a%)
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Naotes on the Financial Statements
4 and benefits
Total employers compensation
by s
Wi L5000
g i e berey 138 By
Wear ended 31 December 1A R
Average namber of persans emiployed by the Entity during the year
006
Kormiber

Oiperabions. and puppom
el office admindsiration

" £

LR

Fpar gnded 11 December

Post-employment benefit plans
The Entity's employess sre members of varlous schemes.

The HS8L Bank [UK) Pension Scheme, which is the principal wheme, covers employees of HSBC Bank plc and
ather group companies. This scheme, sssets of which are held in & separate trust fund, comprises a defined
contribution section, which was established on 1 fuly 1996 for new emplopees.

3 Directars' emaluments

Fees pald to mon Executive Directors of the Entity, computed in accordance with the Companies [Guernssy)

Larwe 2008, wera:
i 6
LIS ey WS5000
Feed Lik nr
Fear ended 31 Decesdar g ur
—

Two executive directors were pald emalurments separately throwgh the payroll and are included in the balances
reported under Note 4 on Employes compensation and benefits. Two non excutive directors walved their fees
on acoownt of belng paid elsewhere in the HSBE Group,

6 Auditors’ remuneration

27 hilE
Lahiead US5000

A fawrd for WAEC Management (Gusimiidy] L ted 1888t ony sudis:
- Feei refating ta cuarent year (1] &0
iar ended 31 Decembar %] &80

There were no non-audit fees paid duting the year (2016 SNiT).
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HSBC Management {Guermasy) Limited
Motes on the Financlal Statements
7 Taxexpense

il LG
Current ti USS000 5000
raprrry Dovpoeation fam
= fiof cutvenl year b= EH
Voar gnded 31 Decemiber b1 ] a1

Following the passing of the Income tax (Zero 10) [Company intermediste Rate] [Amendment) |(Guemsey)
Ordinance 2012 an 13 December 2012, vith eHect from 1 lanuary 2013 the Entity's mcome: arising, net of
deductible gxponses, from specific regulated fiduciary businesa is taved at the Entity irterrradiate rate of 10%
{Mote 2 shows the fiduciary income earned in the year). Subsequent on 29 July 2015, the income tax (Zero 10}
(Company Intermediate Rate) [Amendment) [Guernséy) Ordinance 2015 {the "Amendment”] was passed,
sffective from 1 January T015, The scope of taxable business activities, subject to the Entity intermadinte rate
of 10%, was extended to incude income from the administration of controlled invesiments. The Board of
Directons considered the existing revenue from the administeation of controfled imvestrments to he out of scope )
a5 the Amendment, section 2E, included only provision of administration serdces to consralled imvestments by
unconnected thind parties. The remainder of the Entity’s income i taxed ot the company standasd rate of (7%,
The Entity has $28844 expense In refation to the taxation on its fduciary business (2016: 330,900,

The GLErmSey COrporation ta rate apglying te the Entity was 0.40% (2016: 0.30%).
Tax reconciliation

The tas charged ta the Income Statement does not differ to the tas expense that would apgty if all profits had
been Laned at thee Guernsey Corporation Lax rate.

B Dividends to shareholders

mr ik
Dividends declaned 6 pidinary harey § ped ahare G35 § peribhane S0
Fiesi Laterem dvidend i respect 0 the oo nent ve 2000 000 13000 17,000

A total dividend for 2017 of 525 nsllian (2016; $17 million] was paéd on the ordinary share cagital duting year
embed 31 Decemnber 2017, )

9 Cash and cash equbal

M7 T
Ussom USS000

Aot Rkl with: cthes grods usadettaling L L 3530
Cash and cavh equivalents 16594 nEw

Arnaunts due from other group undertaking sre unsecured and repayable on demand. The Entity did not garn
interest on Cash and cash equivalents (2016: SN).
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HSBC Management (Guemsey) Limited

Motes on the Financial Statements

10 Trade and other receivables

v it
Usfieca sl
Amount due from other proup undeaking Tl E53
Trade recerables 183 2530
Cithes assets - 437
Trada 3nd cther recevables pror b pReAdion 3,585 aA0s
] (Lo} .
Tesedt and sther reccivables 5 4015
—_— ———
Amount due from other group undertaking Is unsecured and repayable on demand.
11 Prepayments and accrued income
Prepayments and accrued incoms include the following:
07 mMe
usSd UEED00
Hedgn Furd managemers dees 5881 1,783
Privats Equity maragement tees a7 7,585
Red Ditate managemend lees 5976 11539
Ry [state pademesce foes - 1819
Prepayments dnd scorued inoteme prior Bn proson 16577 Bi 055
Frovtsizn {30} 2
Prepayeants snd sccrued incoma 15,547 M.03s

During 2017, HSBC Management [Guernsey] Limited liguidated its existing subsidiarkes and incorporated a
subsidiary HEBC |Guernsey) GP PCC Limited {Company number 63234) on & Mareh 2017, which now acts 84 3
Protected Cell Company with the sctivities of existing subsidiaries all novated into the new subsidiasy with
appropriate protected cell, All subsidiaries act as Genersl Pastner for HSBC Asset Management Funds,

Fv) 2018
S5 000 [oery
Invesoment in subnbiisci bl 1 [ ]
iy of the tebidary Comntry of Interew in
Lt il Truity Capiral Ssrw Clada Mo, of Shares
T
HSEE [Burrniey) 023 POC Limited® vy i, Dol oy §1 i
TOLE | AN novw lgeddared)
Emwprging Growtf Resd [itate Fund &GP Limied! Quemary 008 Ordinary 51 i
Vistnge 1] Sgaiial Rouaiicnd 08 Limied’ Gimemaey ) Ordinaey 51 !
Wintage | Socardiary §3 Limseg! Buemsey 100N Ordsniry 51 i
Facordany Cub Cesl | GF Lenimed® Gurmsey HEG Drdemary £ H
Secondary Club Deal 0 5P Limited? Gurmsey oo Dedimary 51 |
HIRAP GP imited® Guerrgy e Oy 11 |
Virige NHE HV P Limeeat ottty J0ONC Oy 51 £
Windage 2016 KER GP Lisitad! Tiasfeday 1008 Dy 51 1
Viednge 2016 Atharium Lamited® Gty 100% Orinaey 51 1

3 Akt Assold Mo, ST kdans dvemr, ST Rrter Por, Guenane, GV IWF

i
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HSBC Management (Suernsey) Limited

Mates on the Financial Statements
13 Property, plant and equipment
Equipmena,
Stwturecs and fttingt Tatal
usse0d WFSE000
[ 119 Lisa
Acrumutied desreeution biought loreard L%l Lm0
Dwprecizhon chage fof the yrar ¥ 4
Arcumaiated difdhliniog 1AW 1,150
it oo waben 11 of 31 December 2047 L
WL e—— —r——
Equpment,
fiviures and Estiogs el J
U UER000
Cost 118 1,150
Arcurrelibd depreiation 1LtA | H
et boot vakee 2y of 31 Deceviles ML a )
14 Trade and other payables
FLiE] Fik]
uidaan WSS
Amoury due L3 ot her group underTiking 2295 2TTR
Trade and ether parysbles 14,195 ek |

Amaun:squtherpaupundmukln;;arewmm.mmhn and hive i Tioed date of repayments,

15 Accruals and other liabilities

b ot

IEEa] LRS00

Aty 560 LER L

Orher Rabdties 1L5TF 3543
Aot aed 10 gt g endertaiingy Sit

Agerualy pnd ol labinies LT ] 17,341

Amounts owed to other group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed date of repayments.

16 Cafled up share capital

e, aliited o lully pasd up
100, 000 (3086 100000) Ordnary shares of £1 (2016 (1) wach
Ad 1 Ty and 31 Deoermber 158 158

Il
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H38L Management (Guemsey) Limited

Nates on the Financial Statements
17 Reconciliation of profit before tax to net cash flow from operating sctivities
mr 3038
UEs§000 U
a} Wenrcash Bema incuded in profd belore tes
Elmingtion of exchangs diffevences 515 bag
Depreciation of progesty, plant ded eaupment ¥ H
Toriw! Morecanh e incheded in ol bele tis e L
—— —
b] Changs in operating sbets
Change in Trade nd other redevalios 1441 %511
Chaange in Prepayments Jed sorued income 0cdn 1173rgy
Total changs b opevating assess pE L] (18.025)
-y — - ——
] Chamge in aperatng babditiry
Changs in Trife see ether payatles [LL=E E Y] 18,370
Change is Aocnasly ared ot lisbalitied (8.2E5) 3,008
Tonl change In soersting lubilies [ELR ] 21278
) Cash wnd e wgibvalends compriie
Cireh @nd giih squiviients held st other proup underskings 16,554 31E10
16594 L]

18 Contingent Nabilities and contractual commitmants and guarsntess
There were no contingent Kabilities or financial guarantee contracts as 2t 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil)

19 _Management of financial risk

All of the Entity’s stivities invaive 1o varying degrees, the analysls, evaluation, scceptance and management of
risks or combination of risks. The most important types of risk Include financial risk, which comorises credi
risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The management of financial risk and consideration of profitabilley, cash
fissws and capital resources form a key element [ the Directors” assessment of the Entity as 3 going concerm,

a)  Credit risk management

Credit risk &5 the risk of financial loss if & customer or counterparty of the Entity fails to meet a payment
obligation under a contract. Within the overall framework of the HS8C Group policy, the Entity has an
established risk managernent prodeds encompassing credit approvals, the control of exposures, credit policy
direction to the business, and the monitoring and reporting of exposuires.

The management of the Entity |5 responsible for the quakity of its credit portfolios and follows a credit process
invgiving delegated approval authosities and credit procedures, the oblective of which is to identify problem
exposures in order 1o sccelerate remedial action while building a portfolio of high quaity risk assets. The
Entity’s credit risk rating systems and processes differentiate exposures in arder to highlight those with greater
risk factors and higher potentlal severity of loss. Regular reviews are undertaken to assess and evaluate levels
of risk concentration,

3
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Motes on the Financlal Statements

15 Mianagemaent of financial risk [continued)

a) Credit risk managerment [continued)

The risk afises from Uansactions with HSBC undertakings. The management of credit is undertaken in
campliance with the Entity's rechange strategy. The Entity operates within this and the credit ik sapotures are
reviewed and managed by the senior management of the Entity and the HSBC Grouwp's Finance Exco. The
makimum eredit sxpasure of the Entity it limited to the carrying value of the dues from an HSBC Group
company, Balances are peimarily with the HS8C Group and third party and have low credit fisk. None of the
balances are past due of impained.

The Entity's exposure to credit rish arises mainly from third party and inMtercompany fee receivables. An
important measure of credit risk is in the ageing of Feis receivable a3 reported balow:

As at 31 Decembar 3017 Chse writhlri 0 dapi D 90 dwys - 1 year Dws owar one yar Total
URER00 S5 T0 UEEo00 USS'e00

Caah and cash eguivalant 16484 - - 16,594
Trade s ather recrivabies our 1554 83 25M4
Prepsymenty Snd Stoneed infome 1340 LT L] 15,547
Tokal crwd® SRiEts 30,932 a0 153 35,115

——r

i 31 1 Deermber 1006 ot v iy 5001 iyt Core 50 g - 0 e Dt vt et ey Todal
§ie U500 LS00 WS

Cagh ad cadh equalent I . 30
Trade i0d cther e 1,183 LME 158 4Mm%
Prepapmentd sad mrrued ncome 8173 LT 5.590 i
Tl crmel vieti A1 064 1,510 EAF TLGS

There are no available credit ratings for assets dasclosed above. Although no rating s avallable, Management
manitors the eresit warthiness of all sasets as apprapriate.
b)  Liguidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Entlty does not hive sufficient finandial resurces to meot obligations & they
fall due or will have access 10 such resouwoes onty at an excessive cost. The risk arises from mismatches i the
timing of eash flows.

The following s an analytis of undiscounted cash flows pavable under finandal liabilities by remaming
contractual matwrities (fecluding interest) at the end of the reporting period:

Carnping walus Conlesctoal cadh 0m demand Deap witivin 3 Due between  Dus beetween
i montk 312 months 1-5ypeans
RSO0 UrS5' 000 us5o0 USSTa UE5000 L]
Trade el cther paryables 14195 .15 14,15 . =
Aciruals and it Labdoey 8,058 3,059 a0 . *
A1 31 Decessber 2017 1354 TR LA -
Trade and other payatlel M.TTE FUR ] T | & . 3
Agcnaais and ofher labdited 17,242 ir34az 17,342 . -
AL 31 Deceesher 3016 42,150 A%130 4511

M
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HEBC Management (Guarnsey) Limited

Notes on the Finandal Statemnents
13 Management of financial risk [continued])

€] Market risk management

Market risk 1s the risk that movernents in market factors Including interest rates, foreign exchange rates or
equity and commadity prices will Impact the Entity’s income of the value of its portfolios.

The Entity's objective & 1o manage and contral market rate exposured while malntaining a market profile
consistent with its risk appetite.

The Entity manages market risk through risk limits approved by the Local Management Committes of HSBC

Maragement (Guernsey) Umited and adopted by the Entity's Board. An independent risk unit develops risk
management pollches and measurement technigues, and reviews limit utilisaton on a daily basis.

df  Ieterest rate risk

Bark nterest on deposits held at HSEC Banik is the only source of interest exposure, The effective interest rate
during 2017 was Nil % (2016: Nil %) and all balances mature within 1 year,

8] Semsithvity

A 5 percent strengthening of the US dollar against the following currencies a5 at 31 Decembrer 2017 would
have reduced profits by the amounts shown below. A 5 per cent weakening would have had the equal but
oppasite effect to the amounts shown below:

T 2046

UsFRen R

Eara ek 18
Drtigh Paynd m 116
Sweins Frang L 3
Japaneae Ten " = |
Cninene Yuan H 1
Hong Kong dolter 1 7
Totel reduction of prodit before taw due to 8 5% sireagthening o US Dollar 5 E]

f)  Foreign exchange risk

The Entity s expesed to currency risk in respect of income and cash balances denomenated in a currency other
than US Dodlar. The Entity’s exposure is kept to an acceptablie level by managing the lavel of ron-US Dollar cash
balarces on 8 regular basis. The Entity’s balance sheet comprises balances held in different currencies. At the
reparting date the currency profile of the Entity's balance sheet was:

g 9% §U Detember 2017 U Dallar Saeriing fyra Otsery Tatal
U000 LS5 oo L] S5 e00 [y
Tenal asrts EHETS X RRLH m 35355
Tt bt acud mguity 133,580 11,525 4 o [35.215]
Mt gmpriuate [2,771] 477 1181 12
A g2 31 Decembet I006 LIS Dolar Seerheg Egay Dthepri Total
USE000 LS5 000 LEH O RO L5000
Totsl xitaty 3reTy LLas 24,030 1854 TLEM
Totsl kabatay prd aguily (50, 760y 3.7949] LA {426} {71,679

et esposung [LEE 1] 1396 B.rS LR H

FL
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HS8C Management (Guernsay) Limited
Hotes on the Financial Statements

20 OHsewing of financlel assets and financlal llabilities
As 3t 31 Dacember 2017, there were no amourts subject to enforceable neming arrangemants (J006: Nil).

21 Related party transactions

The Entity’s refated parties include the parent, fellow subsidiaries, post-employment benefits plans for the

Entity's employees, Key Managemnent Personnel, close family members of Key Management Persennel and

ertities which are controlied or sigrificantly Influenced by ey Management Pecsonnel or their clase family

mEmers.

1) Transactions wath Directors and other Key Management Personnel

Koy Managemsn: Personnel are defined as those persons having authornity ard responsibdity for planning.

directing and controlling the activitles of the Entity and inchudes members of the Board of Directors.

Mo loans were made to Key Management Personnel for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: None ) There

are no transactions between the Entity and Key Maragement Persannel, which fall to be disclosed under 1A524

“Related Party Bisclosures” between the Entity and the Key Management Persannel. )

All srad serimg on behalf of the Entity are pald by H38C Private Bank (C.1.) Umited (PBCI). On a monthly basis,
PBCE vaices thie Entity for stafl utilised in the Entity’s cperations. For the year ended 31 Decernber 2017, PBQO
bélled the Entity a total of 51,327,968 (2016: $889 491} for salaries and benefits.

by  Transactions with other related parties
Transsctions detaled below mclude amownts due to f from MSBC Global Asset Managermenil Limited.

¥ Ptk ]
e

gtk Balangs Batance o Higheril Bulance Balane at
duriag the Year' 1 Becpmber' disingthe Tear' 31 December!
W00 LL2 ] LSE'000 LSS0
Aiens
Liskdiies .

1 P By irpors G i A7 BALIAGE B0 P BigRaiF SOl Suran) P gt ! 3 V) uleried 15 arenl muamegtd misvealme B trpried betas b dating P ok

T i
Incoma $atermes us$ o0 S50
Dinidharnd 10 v ehaslier 1000 17000 J

—

Transactions detalled below inclhade prspunts due ta / from other group undertakings.

7 Lt
Highaut balance Dalsacy s¢ Paghast halance [T
during the Year® 31 Davember’ g B Ve 31 Desember?
uisndd uRi'nas A4 ] USED00
Aspets
Cash bt ash e uivalemts An410 1655 31610 31,610
TFraade gl pibay rereiealien T T B5R B52
Crher kidets - - 41z a0y
18 1750 ALEFS 31695
Lishities
Trase Gndl GIner DEvasles 4,504 14,285 WMTE 4,78
Drher Bkl 1458 LT+ -
e EER L 28,718 4T

& o papurane o he gt ki S P BB BEURGE Bemond 1N g o FRCRS T B sl ignm st i ennames Lamsastont of 18
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H58C Management [Guernsey] Limited
Notes on the Financial Statements

21 Related party transactions (continued)
b} Transactions with other selsted parties jcontinued)

BT ESTY

Income Statement USE000 USST00
Fip i commigiion mgomi - Fund managersnt wed sdrmniration fees 1,837 5
Few wred xperie - Eturn K 5425 B0
Fag e commession sapevae « Ivesimen ivisorg leey 15 36% 15,904
e k o = Fumad i W bewi 5038 11,418
Efiphiyee camgensation snd beneldis 3% L]
Griiral and admisinirative sxpeensen B3 LI

The above transsctions wore made in the ordinary course of business and on substartially the same terms,
including interest rates and security, as for comparable transactions with persons of a similar standing o,
where applicable, with other employees. The transactions did not irvolve more than the normal risk of
repayment o present other unfavourable features.

22  Financlal Resources rement Test

The below Financial Resources Requirements Test ("FRR") was performed wsing the figures svailable a5 of
31 December 2017, This test was performed on @ monthly basis during the year and no material deficiencles
were noted. FRR & a test requined by the Guernsey Financial Services Commission.

W0 e
‘Financisl Rewsuries Requiremant tet [1E5 3= USS000
et avsety sfter sdnatments, contingent babehilles oo 1k 8,11 46,109
Grdbee of 20% Annual Audied Expenditurs s £100,000L5 Doliar 135,180 1EST 40
Pt Sufplus Finsngial Bewguroes 11349 457
—— T
Kt cufrood anseds, ke loan 10 rowp Compary 18,035 SR RRY
daneater o 10% Anmyal Audaed Erxpesdtune and £ 10,000 [US Dadlsr 13,518]
1 of Aarusl Audited Dapendtung kL 168
Bret Surplus Liquidity 10,350 T
23 Parent undertakings

The ultimate parent undertaking and ultimate controlling party !s HSBC Haldings plc which is the parent
undertaking af the largest group to consolidate these Financidl Statements. HSBC Bank ple is the parent
undertaking of the smallest group to consolidate these Financial Staterents,

The Entity i wholly owned subsidiary of its immediate parent undertaking HSBC Global Asver Management
Limited and has been so throughout the year ended 31 December 2057, The Entity was incorporated in
Guernsey on 25 September 1986. All companies are registered in England and Wales

Copies of HSBC Holdings plt and HS8C Bank pic consolidated Finandal Statements can be abtained fram:

HERC Bank pic

8 Canada Square
London, E14 5HO
www hshie.com

24 Events after the balance sheet date

There are no significant events after the balance shee date,

b
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HSBC C.I.
HSBC Private Bank C.l. Limited

29 12 800 888,480
60 GY1 3NF
HSBC 20 31
HSBC

HSBC
HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch
HSBC 30 797 115,214
State Street Custodial Services Ireland Limited

30 200,000 28,912

HSBC

State Street Fund Services Ireland Limited

30 350,000 50,596

HSBC
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HSBC Securities Services (Ireland) DAC
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HSBC HSBC
30 19,775
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7,994 988
30 31
14.15 )
30 781
HSBC C.I.

HSBC Private Bank C.l1. Limited
1987
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State Street Fund Services Ireland Limited
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D.E.
D.E. Shaw Composite International Fund

D.E. D.E. Shaw & Co., L.L.C.

Q) (i) (iii)

Davidson Kempner International, Ltd.

Davidson Kempner International Advisors, L.L.C.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of HSBC Special Opportunities Fund and its subsidiary (the “Fund”) as at 30 April 2018, and of the consolidated
financial performance for the year then ended in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
comprising FRS 102, "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of
Ireland” (“FRS 102") and have been properly prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.

What we have audited
The Fund's consolidated financial statements comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 30 April 2018;

e the consolidated statement of total return for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in net assets attributable to the unitholders of the Fund for the year
then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”) and with SEC Independence Rules. We have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information

The manager is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information in the
Annual Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the manager for the consolidated financial statements

The manager is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102, the requirements of
Guernsey law, and for such internal control as the manager determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the manager is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the manager either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND
(CONTINUED)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Fund's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the manager.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the manager's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Fund to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Fund audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Fund's unitholders as a body in
accordance with paragraph 4.02(3) of The Authorised Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 2013 and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any
other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our
prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers ClI LLP
Chartered Accountants
Guernsey, Channel Islands

Date:31 August 2018
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Report on the audit of the Financia Statements
Our opinion

In our opinion, the Financial Statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of HSBC Management (Guernsey)
Limited (the “Company”) as at 31 December 2017, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financia Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
requirements of The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008, The Regulation of Fiduciaries (Accounts) Rules, 2001 and The
Protection of Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 1987.

What we have audited

The Company’s Financial Statements comprise:

the Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2017,

the Income Statement for the year then ended;

the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,;

the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended; and

the Notes to the Financia Statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAS’). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasisfor our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the IESBA Code.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Strategic Report and the Report of

the Directors but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in thisregard.
Responsibilities of directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with

International Financial Reporting Standards, the requirements of Guernsey law and for such internal control as the directors
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determine is necessary to enable the preparation of Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the

directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individualy or in
agoregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of userstaken on the basis of these Financial

Statements.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evauate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Under The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit;
e proper accounting records have not been kept; or

e the Financial Statements are not in agreement with the accounting records. We
have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
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Furthermore we have examined the Statement of Financial Resources set out on page 28. In our opinion the financial resources

requirement specified in Rule 2.2.2 of The Licensees (Capital Adequacy) 2010 Rules has been satisfied.

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the members as a body in accordance with Section 262 of
the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save

where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

For and on behalf of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Cl LLP
Chartered Accountants

Guernsey, Channel Islands

29 March 2018
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